
 

 

 

Priorities and Resources Review Panel 2015/2016 

 
Members 

Councillors Darling, Thomas (J), Bent, Davies, Hytche, Kingscote, Pentney, Stockman and 
McPhail 

 
(Contact 01803 207063 or e: scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk) 

 

 
Monday, 1 September 2014 at 9.30 am  

to be held in the Burdett Room, Riviera International Conference Centre, 
Chestnut Avenue, Torquay, TQ2 5LZ 

 

 

Stakeholder organisations, service users, community groups and members of the public are 
invited to attend the meeting and share their views with the Panel.  If you wish to speak at the 
meeting, please register by Wednesday 27 August 2014 by contacting the Scrutiny Team on 

01803 207063 or scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
1.   Apologies  

 
2.   (9.30) Revenue Budget 2014/2015 - Quarter 1 (Pages 1 - 

22)  To consider the current position of the 2014/2015 Revenue Budget and 
to identify any issues to be explored over the coming information 
gathering sessions. 

 
3.   Information Services - Connections  

 
3(a)   (9.45) Introduction and Rationale (Pages 23 - 

35) 



 To hear from the Mayor and Executive Lead for Business Planning and 
Governance on the reasoning behind the proposals in relation to 
Connections. 
 
(The proposals document and the associated Equality Impact 
Assessment are attached for information.) 

 
3(b)   (10.00)  Representations from Members of the Public  

 To hear representations from members of the public on the proposals in 
relation to Connections. 

 
3(c)   (10.15)  Representations from Members of the Council  

 To hear representations from Councillors who are not members of the 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel on the proposals in relation to 
Connections. 

 
3(d)   (10.30)  Questions to the Mayor and Executive Lead  

 Members of the Panel to ask any questions of the Mayor and Executive 
Lead. 

 
 11.15 - 11.30 a.m. BREAK  

 
4.   Children's Services  

 
4(a)   (11.30)  Introduction and Rationale (Pages 36 - 

107) 

 To hear from the Mayor and Executive Lead for Children’s Services on 
the reasoning behind the proposals in relation to Children’s Services. 
 
(The proposals document and the associated Equality Impact 
Assessments are attached for information.) 
 
To also consider the Five Year Strategy for Children’s Services (draft 
report to Council attached). 

 
4(b)   (11.45)  Representations from Members of the Public  

 To hear representations from members of the public on the proposals in 
relation to Children’s Services. 
 

 



4(c)   (12.00)  Representations from Members of the Council  

 To hear representations from Councillors who are not members of the 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel on the proposals in relation to 
Children’s Services. 

 
4(d)   (12.15)  Questions to the Mayor and Executive Lead  

 Members of the Panel to ask any questions of the Mayor and Executive 
Lead. 

 
 1.15 - 2.00 p.m.  WORKING LUNCH  

 
5.   Adult Services  

 
5(a)   (2.00)  Introduction and Rationale (Pages 108 - 

124) 

 To hear from the Mayor and Executive Lead for Adult Social Care on 
the reasoning behind the proposals in relation to Adult Services. 
 
(The proposals document is attached for information.) 
 
To also consider how the transitional funding arrangements for 
supporting people services have been implemented (paper attached). 

 
5(b)   (2.15)  Representations from Members of the Public  

 To hear representations from members of the public on the proposals in 
relation to Adult Services. 

 
5(c)   (2.30)  Representations from Members of the Council  

 To hear representations from Councillors who are not members of the 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel on the proposals in relation to 
Adult Services. 

 
5(d)   (2.45)  Questions to the Mayor and Executive Lead  

 Members of the Panel to ask any questions of the Mayor and Executive 
Lead. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 3.45 - 4.00 BREAK  

 
6.   (4.00) Initial Conclusions  
 To identify possible: 

• Areas of follow up 

• Inter-relationships with other topics under review 

• Conclusions/recommendations 



Title: Revenue Budget Monitoring 201
  

Wards Affected: All Wards in Torbay
  

To: Priorities and Resources Review 
Panel
 

  
Contact Officer: Paul Looby
℡ Telephone: 01803 207283
�  E.mail: paul.looby@torbay.gov.uk
 

 
1. Key Points and Summary
 
1.1 At this early stage of the financial year, a number of budget pressures have 

been identified which Torbay Council mus
balanced budget.  The latest projected outturn position 
quarter is a £2.138m overspend. 

 
1.2 The two main pressures are within Children’s 

and Adult Social Care.
financial challenges th
February 2014. The inherent risks the 
proposals were approved
were accepted by Members
from the coalition government and demand
services. 

 
1.3 Due to the continued service pressures and the impact of previous budget 

reductions the significance of this projected overspend
of the financial year
Team and Executive Lead Members are working hard to address the 
pressures and take corrective action 
 

1.4 The key variations within services
 

• Children’s Services: The Director of 
projected overspend of £1.4m at the end of the year.  However, 
headline overspend 
approved budget of £21m
earmarked contingency and delivery 
overspend is due 

 
 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 – Quarter 

Wards in Torbay 

Priorities and Resources Review 
Panel 

On:  1 September
 

Paul Looby 
01803 207283 
paul.looby@torbay.gov.uk 

oints and Summary 

At this early stage of the financial year, a number of budget pressures have 
been identified which Torbay Council must manage in order to deliver a 

The latest projected outturn position at the end of the first 
m overspend.   

n pressures are within Children’s - Safeguarding and Wellbeing
and Adult Social Care.  As in previous years Members were advised of the 
financial challenges that would be faced when the 2014/15 budget was set

The inherent risks the Council faced, when t
proposals were approved, were set out in the budget report and these 
were accepted by Members and arise from the ongoing austerity

coalition government and demand pressures across a number of 

Due to the continued service pressures and the impact of previous budget 
reductions the significance of this projected overspend, at such an
of the financial year, should not be underestimated. The Senior Leadership 
Team and Executive Lead Members are working hard to address the 
pressures and take corrective action where appropriate. 

The key variations within services are summarised below: 

Children’s Services: The Director of Children’s Services
projected overspend of £1.4m at the end of the year.  However, 

overspend within Safeguarding and Wellbeing is £6.
approved budget of £21m.  This is before the application 
earmarked contingency and delivery of the recovery plan.  The 

is due primarily to pressures within the Safeguarding and 

Quarter 1 

September 2014  
 

At this early stage of the financial year, a number of budget pressures have 
t manage in order to deliver a 

at the end of the first 

Safeguarding and Wellbeing 
Members were advised of the 

budget was set in 
when the budget 

were set out in the budget report and these risks 
ongoing austerity measures 

pressures across a number of 

Due to the continued service pressures and the impact of previous budget 
at such an early part 

should not be underestimated. The Senior Leadership 
Team and Executive Lead Members are working hard to address the 

Services is forecasting a 
projected overspend of £1.4m at the end of the year.  However, the 

Safeguarding and Wellbeing is £6.2m on an 
the application of the 
recovery plan.  The 

Safeguarding and 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Wellbeing service arising from the number and costs for looked after 
children and the costs for the continued use of agency social workers. 

 

• Adult Social Care: £0.8m projected overspend due primarily to delayed 
and non delivery of the Cost Improvement Programme managed by the 
Torbay and Southern Devon Care and Health NHS Trust. 

 

• Waste: £0.2m projected overspend due to increased costs primarily 
arising from increased tonnages and the delayed opening of the Energy 
for Waste Plant.   

 

• Residents and Visitors: projected overspend of £0.490m due to lower  
forecast income against the approved budgets for, Parking Services, 
Sports, Torre Abbey and Corporate Security. 

   
1.5 In addition to the pressures identified above, at this early stage of the year 

other Business Units will be monitored closely over the next quarter to ensure 
any other financial pressures are identified and managed. 

 
1.6 In response to the projected outturn position within Children’s Services, a 5 

year  Cost Reduction Plan has been developed to manage existing and future 
pressures and identify work packages as part of a cost reduction programme. 
This work is supported by Social Finance and will be presented to Council in 
September for approval. 
 

1.7 If the 5 year plan and recovery plan is not considered robust enough and 
deliverable to reduce or contain the overspend in the short and medium term 
the Senior Leadership Team and Executive Leads will have to consider all 
options for addressing the projected overspend including strict controls on the 
recruitment to any vacant posts and curtailment of all non essential 
expenditure.  Due to the size of the overspend in the first quarter of the 
financial year, it proposed that some uncommitted budgets are held to offset 
and reduce the current overspend. 
 

1.8 With respect to Adult Social Care, the Trust has produced a recovery plan 
which has been appended to this report which sets out the actions that are 
being taken to reduce spend. 
 

1.9 At the time of writing this report Members are scrutinising the 2015/16 savings 
proposals. Part of the strategy to reduce the current projected overspend will 
be to bring forward as many of those savings proposed for 2015/16 into the 
current financial year to deliver in-year savings.  

 
1.10 Members will be aware that the Council must achieve a balanced budget at 

year end. This will  be achieved by either: 
 

Page 2



a) those services overspending producing in-year recovery plans which 
reduces or removes the projected overspend; 

 
b) all other services deliver in year savings resulting in an underspend at year 

end; 
 
c) if insufficient savings can be made there is a risk that, as a last resort, 

uncommitted reserves or uncommitted budgets will be required to ensure a 
balanced budget can be achieved at the end of the year.    

 
1.11 Members will be aware the Council does hold reserves. These should only be 

used for one off purposes and are not a solution to supporting ongoing 
financial commitments. Members should be aware that unless action is taken 
to reduce the existing overspends there is a possibility that the council will 
have to draw down monies from the Comprehensive Spending Review 
Reserve in 2014/15 to ensure a balanced position is achieved.   

 
Strategy for in Year Budget Management  

  
1.12 As in previous years’ the Council will continue with its adopted ongoing 

Strategy in response to the coalition government’s austerity programme and 
to address its own financial challenges.  Fundamentally the Senior Leadership 
Team and Executive Lead Members must maintain strict financial 
management and control over all services areas. This will have to include 
some or all of the following measures: 

 
- a moratorium on all non essential expenditure and a reduction in all other 

expenditure with an assessment of the services consequences. 
 

- a freeze on all non essential recruitment. 
 

- a review of budgeted expenditure that could be ceased and an 
assessment of the service consequences including reshaping of services 
where possible. 

 
- bringing forward any savings proposals for 2015/16 and implementing 

these to derive in-year savings. 
 

- Redeployment of staff directly affected by any restructuring proposals 
where vacancies exist. 

 
- identification of any invest to save schemes that will have immediate cost 

savings in 2014/15 and beyond. 
 
1.13 In terms of delivering the requisite amount of savings required based on the 

quarter one forecast position, bringing forward proposed 2015/16 savings will 
probably result in the greatest value of savings.  That said there must be a 
recognition that due to the scale of the financial challenge faced, drawing 
down on reserves may be needed to reach a balanced position in 2014/15. 

 

Page 3



1.14 The effective implementation and delivery of the 5 year financial strategy for 
Children’s Services and the recovery plan for Adult Social Care are essential 
to ensure the council’s financial position is robust both in this and future years. 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board will have an opportunity to 
discuss the recovery plan for Adult Social Care and the Cost Reduction Plan 
for Children’s Services. The Cost Reduction Plan will be presented to Council 
in on 25 September for approval. 

 
 
 
 
 
Paul Looby 
Executive Head of Finance and Chief Finance Officer 
 
 
Appendices 
 
 
Appendix 1 Summary of Main Variations 

 

Appendix 2 Torbay and Southern Devon Health Care Trust  Recovery Plan 

 

Exempt Appendix 3   Write offs above £5,000 

  
Documents available in Members’ rooms 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers: 
 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
 
None. 

Page 4



Summary of Main Variations 
 

A.1 Report Overview 
 
A1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with a summary of the 

projections of income and expenditure for all Business Units within the Council 
and to set out how the Council will maintain expenditure within its approved 
budget of £115.8m.  

   
A1.2 The revenue monitoring statement shows the expenditure and projected 

outturn position based upon the latest information available to finance officers 
in consultation with service departments.  Where possible, the implications or 
consequences arising from the variations are reflected in the key performance 
indicators for that service. 

 
A1.3. Ongoing financial monitoring will be provided to Members quarterly.  
 
A.2 Financial Performance 
 
A2.1 Table 2 overleaf provides a summary of the projected outturn position for 

Council services. The 2014/15 budget has been revised to reflect changes to 
services within individual Business Units.  

 
  

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1

Page 5



Table 2 
Projected Outturn Position – Quarter 1  

 

 
Business Unit/Service  

 
2014/15 
Revised 
Budget 

 
Spend to 
Date 

 
Projected 
Out-turn 

 
Variation at 
Out-turn 

 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 
Director Adults 
 
Adult Social Care  
Supporting People 
 

 
 
 

41,733 
1,878 

 
 
 

10,282 
975 

 
 
 

42,533 
1,828 

 
 
 

800 
(50) 

 43,611 11,257 44,361 750 

 
Director of Children’s Services 
 

 
25,333 

 
15,922 

 
26,733 

 
1,400 

 
Director of Operations and 
Finance 
 
Business Services 
Commercial Services 
Finance 
Information Services 
 

 
 
 

1,053 
3,548 
8,567 
3,271 

 
 
 

440 
841 
822 

1,042 

 
 
 

1,053 
3,558 
7,855 
3,271 

 
 
 

0 
10 

(712) 
0  

 16,439 3,145 15,737 (702) 

 
Director of Place 
 
Residents and Visitors 
Spatial Planning 
TDA - Clientside 
TDA – TEDC 
Torbay Harbour Authority (ring 
fenced budget £2.5m) 
Waste  and Cleaning 
 

 
 
 

7,293 
5,521 
2,278 
1,485 

26 
 

11,499 
 

 
 
 

3,770 
1,818 
2,043 
1,523 
(313) 

 
9,346 

 

 
 
 

7,783 
5,521 
2,278 
1,485 

26 
 

11,699 
 

 
 
 

490 
0 
0 
0 
0 
 

200 
 

 28,102 18,187 28,792 690 

 
Director of Public Health 
 
Community Safety 
Public Health (Ring-fenced budget 
of £8.1m) 
 

 
 

2,271 
0 

 
 

723 
4,145 

 
 

2,271 
0 

 
 

0 
0 

 2,271 4,868 2,271 0 

Total 115,756 53,379 117,894 2,138 

Page 6



Main Variations 
 
A2.2  A summary of the main variances and the principal reasons for any 

underspends or overspends and any emerging issues within each directorate 
are explained below.   
 
Adults   

 
A2.3 This portfolio covers Adult Social Care and Supporting People and is 

projecting to overspend by £0.750m.  
 

Adult Social Care  
 
The provision of Adult Social Care is a commissioned service provided by the 
Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust.  The Trust are 
forecasting a £0.8m overspend for the year at the end of quarter 1. Further 
details and a Recovery Plan is appended to this report as provided by 
theTrust.   
 
The main reason for the forecast overspend is due to the non achievement  of 
some of the  2014/15 savings which form part of the Trust’s Cost 
Improvement Programme (CIP). The Trust, on behalf of the Council, have a 
statutory duty to meet assessed need where the Fair Acess to Care Services 
(FACS) criteria is met. It was recognised that there were some care packages 
whereby there was provision of services in excess of need, and some 
services which were not being delivered in the most cost efficient way. 
Against this background, a number of savings proposals were put forward.  A 
summary of the key issues as identified by the Trust  include: 
 

1. Under delivery against CIP Plan to date on Packages of Care (POC) 
under £70. The Trust undertook a Telephone Pilot for this category of 
care throughout May 2014 and this did not realise the expected 
savings. 

 
2. No progress has been made to date on non-residential POC between 

£70 to £606. Since the beginning of the year there are additional cost 
pressures with 40 clients over the set target for this particular savings 
Plan. Non delivery for this scheme has had an impact on the financial 
position for Mental Health over 65s and Torquay and Mental Health 
under 65s teams. 

 
3. Good progress has been made on the other main schemes including 

Residential Based under £606 and POC over £606. If the current client 
base is maintained throughout the remainder of the financial year then 
the majority of the CIP target will be achieved. The Learning Disability 
service is estimated to have achieved its entire CIP target. 
 

The Trust has advised that at this early part of the financial year there could 
be further changes to the forecast outturn position due to the nature of the 
service, demands placed upon it as there are a number of volatile factors that 

Page 7



could influence the forecast.  

 
Supporting People is projecting to underspend by £0.050m due to a 
combination of contractual savings and vacancy management savings. 
 

 
A2.4 Children, Schools & Families  
 

Children’s Services are projecting a forecast outturn overspend of £1.4m. 
This is after the delivery of anticipated savings from their recovery plan and 
after the application of the £2m contingency for Children’s Social Care and 
£1m from reserves which was agreed as part of the budget proposals in 
February 2014. A summary of the budget pressures within Children’s 
Services are shown below: 
 
                                                                      £’m 
 
Projected Overspend                                    6.2   
 
Use of Contingency                                       2.0 
 
                                                                      4.2 
 
Use of one off PFI sinking reserve  
(approved  by Council Feb 14)                    1.0 
 
                                                                     3.2 
 
Recovery Plan Savings to  
be delivered in-year                                     1.8 
 
Forecast Outturn Position                        1.4 
 
The projected overspend is primarily due to budget pressures within 
Safeguarding and Wellbeing due to the  number and cost of placements and 
the ongoing use of agency social workers in Safeguarding and Wellbeing. 
The headline position before the application of the contingency, reserves and 
the recovery plan is a forecast overspend of £6.0m for Safeguarding and 
Wellbeing. In addition there are budget pressures within School Services and 
Family Services totalling £0.2m. 
 
The number of looked after children at the end of June 2014 is 304, a 
decrease of 10 since the end of March 2014. The number of children on 
Child Protection Plans at the end of June was 166, a decrease of 7 since the 
end of March 2014. 
 
Members will be presented with a report in September setting out a 5 year 
cost reduction plan to address the budget pressures within Children’s 

Page 8



Services.  This report will set out the work undertaken by Social Finance who 
are supporting Children’s Services in the delivery of new operational working 
practices to ensure the costs for the service are brought in line with the 
average cost when compared to other local authorities. The plan will require 
investment over the next three years which will be funded from earmarked 
reserves.  These reserves will have to be replenished from the forecast 
savings achieved within the service. If these savings are not delivered this 
will impact upon all other services within the council as the reserves used will 
have to be replenished.  
 
The programme of activities currently in place and being developed will 
continue to remodel the service and are required to reduce the number of 
Looked After Children and the amount of time they spend in care.  The 
programme will include embedding a more robust and assertive Fostering 
Strategy, which will have to increase the number of in-house foster carers 
and move Children from Independent Sector Placements without affecting 
outcomes if savings are to be delivered. The implementation of a residential 
migration project must be achieved if it is to be a cost effective alternative to 
residential care.  
 

 
Place  
  

A2.5   There is a projected overspend of £0.690m.  A summary of the main 
variations are identified below: 

 
Residents and Visitor Services is projecting an overspend of £0.490m  
 
This is due primarily to: 
 

• spending pressures within Parking Services where there is a projected 
shortfall in car parking income of £0.4m. This is a combination of on 
and off street parking and a reduction in enforcement income. 
Members will be aware the summer season is where the vast majority 
of income is collected and is influenced by the weather and the 
number of visitors to the Bay.  The full impact of the main tourist 
season will be known at the end of September and will be reported to 
Members as part of the quarter 2 monitoring statement. 

 

• Torre Abbey is reporting a projected overspend of £0.08m due to lower 
than anticipated visitor numbers. 

 

• Sports Services are projected a shortfall in income of £0.1m. 
 

• Corporate security costs (CCTV) are projected to overspend by 
£0.05m due to a shortfall in forecast income. 

 
• These overspend have been partly offset by administrative savings 

and vacancy management across the service and the strict financial 
control across all services to maintain spend within the approved 

Page 9



budget. 

Waste and Cleaning is projecting an overspend of £200k at the end of 
quarter 1.  
 
This is due to a combination of factors including an increase in tonnages of 
waste and a delay in the opening of the new Energy for Waste Plant.  Unless 
tonnages of waste reduce or the level of recycling within the Bay is increased 
it will be challenging to reduce this projected outturn position. 
 

Spatial Planning – is projected to spend within its approved budget at the 
end of quarter 1. 
 
However achievement of the approved budget is subject to receipt of 
budgeted income i.e. planning and building control and the number of 
passenger journeys within the Bay which will impact upon the Concessionary 
Fares budget.   
 
Economic Development Company (Client side) and Business Services 
are projecting to spend within budget as at the end of quarter 1. 

 
A2.6 Public Health  
 

 
Services within Public Health and Community Safety are projected to spend 
within their approved budget at the end of the first quarter. 
 

 
A2.7 Operations and Finance 
 
 Operations and Finance is projected to underspend by £0.702m 
 

Commercial Services is projecting a small overspend of £10,000 due to a 
delay in realising savings from the new combined Coroner area. 
 
Finance is projected to underspend by £0.712m.   
 
The Finance Business Unit is projecting to underspend by £0.1m due to 
vacancy management savings within Financial Services and lower external 
audit inspection fees. 
 
A number of corporate budgets are “accounted for” within Finance. Due to the 
council projected overspend where possible any potential underspend from 
these have been identified and will be used to offset the overspend and 
include the council contingency. 
 

Business Services and Information Services are both projected to spend 
within their approved budget at the end of the first quarter. 
 

Page 10



 
A3 Reserves 
  
A3.1 The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) reserve is the Council’s 

uncommitted reserve which was set up to meet the financial challenges it 
faces over the next few years.  Its main purpose is to fund the costs for 
restructuring but can also be called upon to fund unforeseen events and 
pressures as they arise. 

 
A3.2 The Chief Finance Officer has advised that where possible reserves should 

only be used to support one off initiatives as it is not sustainable to use 
reserves to support ongoing commitments.  As identified within the 2013/14 
outturn report the balance for the CSR reserve was £3.8m as at April 2014. 
 

A3.3 Members will be aware of the ongoing discussions and consultation with 
respect to the 2015/16 savings proposals. Whilst it is too early to confirm the 
costs for restructuring arising from these proposals it is prudent to assume 
these will be approximately £1m – for comparative purposes redundancy and 
associated costs for the 2014/15 budget round was £0.8m. As any decisions 
with respect to the 2015/16 savings proposals will be made in the current 
financial year all associated restructuring costs will be a charge in 2014/15.  

 
A3.4 In addition, if the Council is unable to declare a balanced budget at year end 

after the application of other uncommitted budgets and savings any 
overspend will have to be funded from reserves.  This will reduce the 
Council’s uncommitted reserves and impact upon how the Council manages 
further reductions in government grant in future years.  Due to the projected 
overspend in the current financial year, increasing demands upon services, 
the use of earmarked reserves for invest to save initiatives within Children’s 
Safeguarding and Wellbeing and the affect of reduced budgets for all 
Business Units there is an increased risk that the CSR reserve may be 
required to balance the budget in 2014/15. In addition, if approved, some of 
the savings proposals for 2015/16 include the option for transitional funding 
which will have to be funded from the CSR reserve. 

 
A3.5 A summary of the Council’s uncommitted reserve is shown overleaf in table 3. 

 
  

Page 11



Table 3 - Uncommitted Reserves 
 

 
A3.6  The Council also has its General Fund balance. Since Torbay became a 

Unitary authority in 1998 there has not been a call on the general fund 
balances. The current balance is £4.4m and represents 3.8% of the Council’s 
net budget. 

 
 A3.7 Members will be aware that that the general fund balance is uncommitted 

(unlike other earmarked reserves) and provides funds that would only be used 
for any unforeseen or unexpected expenditure that could not be managed 
within service budgets or earmarked reserves.  With this in mind and in light of 
the difficult financial climate faced by the Council and reduction to the 
Council’s net budget, the Chief Finance Officer believes that a cash balance 
of £4.4m is a prudent and sustainable level to protect the Council from the 
increased risks it faces with respect to the ongoing grant reductions from 
Government and increased demand for some services. However this will be 
monitored closely during 2014/15 taking into account the forecast overspend 
and the delivery of recovery plans within Children’s and Adult Social Care. 
Members should note the Council’s external auditors will have a view as to 
the level of the Council’s General Fund Balance.   

 
A.4 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 
 
A.4.1 DSG funded activities is currently reporting an underspend of £0.346m.  The 

DSG is a ring fenced grant and can only be used to fund schools related 
activities. 

 
  
  

Comprehensive Spending Review Reserve Working Balance  
£’m 

  

Balance as at  1 April  3.8 

  

Potential Calls on CSR Reserve  

  

Redundancy Costs arising from 2015/16 budget  1.0 (estimated)  

2014/15 Budget Pressures         tbc 

Transitional Funding for 2015/16 (if approved) 0.5m estimated 

  

Estimated Balance  tbc 

  

Page 12



A.5 Debtors 
 
A5.1 This section of the report provides Members with an update for the first 

quarter in 2014/15 in respect of council tax and business rate collection.  
 

Council Tax  
 

A5.2 The targets for the collection of Council Tax in 2014/15 are:  
 

(i) collect 96.5% of the Council Tax due within the 12 months of the financial year 

(i.e. April to March); and  

(ii) collect 50% of the arrears brought forward from previous years.  

  

A5.3 The Council is due to collect £65.7m after the granting of statutory exemptions 
and reductions and Council Tax Support in the period April 2014 to March 
2015. To date the Council has collected £17.9m which is 27.2% of the Council 
Tax due in year. The collection level is lower than last year when 27.8% was 
collected. 

 
A5.4 The total arrears outstanding at 31 March 2014 were £4.89m and this has 

been reduced by £0.738m which is about 18.6% of the total arrears due.  At 
the equivalent time last year the Council had collected £0.712m of arrears of 
£3.67m, which equates to around 19.4%. 

 
A5.5 There are no Council Tax write-offs over £5,000 to report.  553 council tax 

accounts with a value of £0.176m have been written off in the first quarter. 
 

Non-Domestic Rates 
 

A5.6 The targets for the collection of NNDR (business rates) re: 
 

(i) collect 97% of the business rates due within the 12 months of the 
financial year (i.e. April to March); and  

(ii) collect 50% of the arrears brought forward from previous years.   
 

A5.7 The Council is due to collect £37.9m after the granting of mandatory relief in 
the period April 2014 to March 2015. To date the Council has collected 
£13.3m which is 29.9% of the business rates due in year. In the equivalent 
period last year the Council had collected £11.5m which equates to 31.2%. 

 
A5.8 The total arrears outstanding at 31 March 2014 were £1.53m and this has 

been reduced by £0.391m which is about 25.5% of the total arrears due. Last 
year the Council had collected £0.385m off arrears of £1.55m which equates 
to around 24.9% 

 
A5.9 There are four write offs above £5,000 which have been circulated to 

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board and are available to all 
Members upon request. 

Page 13



A5.10 The Council has written off 20 accounts in quarter one with a value of 
£0.063m.  

 
Other Debtors 

 
A5.11 The total debt written off in quarter 1 on the Benefits system is £0.026m 

relating to 92 records and £0.029m relating to 74 records. 
 

Page 14



     

Report to Torbay Council setting out the forecast year end position for the 
2014/15 Adult Social Care budget and forward look to 2015/16 

 
Introduction 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to set out for Members the latest financial 

performance figures for the Adult Social Care budget, the progress made by 

the Trust in implementing the savings target set by the Mayor and the actions 

that the Trust has taken to mitigate financial risks to the Council 

Context 
 

2. The Trust was successful in delivering an underspend for the Council in 

2013/14 of £1,227K after achieving cash releasing savings of £2,160K. In 

order to address the reductions in government funding, the Council has set 

the Trust a challenging budget for Adult Social Care in 2014/15. However, 

although the Trust has maintained the downward pressures on costs, it has 

found it a challenge to make the level of savings necessary to reduce 

expenditure further to the level of the budget set for 2014/15. 

 

3. As required by the Mayor and the commissioner of Adult Social Care, the 

Trust prepared plans for delivering these savings in Autumn 2013 and at the 

time, the Trust made the Council aware of the challenges in delivering these 

savings due to: -  

 

i. £12.9m of the independent sector budget (2014/15 base pre Cost 

Improvement Plan - CIP) is spent on long term residential and nursing 

care (net expenditure) and therefore is not amenable to influence in the 

short term.  Therefore, over a 2 year period a savings target of £1.0m has 

been assumed which is an 8% reduction. This means that the balance of 

the savings target, £3.9m for the independent sector has to primarily found 

from the remainder of the budget (2014/15 base pre CIP), £18.9m. This 

equates to a decrease of 21% over a two year period with Direct 

Payments and Domiciliary Care areas particularly affected. 

 

ii. Clients still have a statutory entitlement to care under Fair Access to Care 

Services (FACS) criteria, and therefore, there are limits to managing 

demand. The Trust can ensure that there is not provision of services in 

excess of entitlement, and that services are provided in the most cost 

effective way, however there is a statutory duty to meet assessed need 

where the FACS criteria is met.  

 

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 2

Page 15



4. The table attached in Appendix 1 sets out the estimated savings that will be 

achieved for each scheme in the 2014/15 savings plan. The main points are 

detailed below: 

 

a. In total £1,793K of savings will be achieved out of a total of £2,888K. 

This equates to 62% of the total. 

b. In house Learning Disability is on target to achieve 100% of their 

savings target.  

c. Operations are on target to achieve 49% of their target figure and 

under the risk share arrangement this financial liability will be met by 

the Trust.  

d. The schemes within the Independent Sector are currently on track to 

achieve 61% of the £2,461K target. Good progress has been made on 

a number of savings schemes but two schemes are currently failing to 

deliver. 

i. Savings in packages of care under £70: No financial progress 

has been made against the £400k CIP target. This savings 

target was planned to be delivered by undertaking telephone 

assessments with the clients concerned and was based on an 

extremely challenging target of a 60% reduction in overall costs.  

This is a new mode of service delivery for the Trust and so a 

pilot project based on 70 clients was undertaken.  The pilot 

demonstrated proof of concept and will be adopted as the new 

mode of care going into 2015/16.   Minimal savings were made 

against these 70 clients reviewed but they have been offset by 

increased costs within the general cohort of 300 clients. 

However, the Trust intends to extend this exercise with further 

guidance to staff.  Further details are provided below in the 

section setting out the Trust’s action plan. 

ii. Review of non-residential care packages costing between 

£70.01 and £606 per week.  The overall underachievement is 

£475k which is some £125k in excess of the original target.  

However, this needs to be partially offset by the success of the 

review of clients with packages of care in excess of £606 which 

has driven the cost per week into this bracket.  Measures to 

address this underperformance are set out in the action plan 

below. 

 

5. As set out in the Annual Strategic Agreement, the Council bears the financial 

risk of an over spend on the Independent Sector and In-house Learning 

Disability elements of the ASC budget.  The latter is forecast to break-even 

and therefore the remainder of this report focuses on the financial 

performance of the Independent Sector budget. 

 

Page 16



6. The financial performance of the Independent Sector budget is set out in 

detail in Appendices 2A (zone/team analysis) and 2B (care type analysis). 

This highlights the following main issues. 

 

a. There is an over spend of £858K currently forecast.  

b. From a team perspective the main areas of pressure are within the 

Mental Health over 65 (£378K), Mental Health under 65 (£230K) and 

Torquay (£217K). 

c. From a care type basis the main areas of pressure are within Short 

Stay residential placements (£272K), Domiciliary Care (£386K), Direct 

Payments / DP Reclaims (£162K) and SWAPS £121K. 

 

7. There is a direct correlation between the forecast overspend and two specific 

savings schemes that have not delivered.   

 

8. Underpinning the lack of CIP delivery the following needs to be considered as 

partly mitigating circumstances. 

 

a. Clients have a statutory duty to receive care to meet assessed needs 

when the FACS criteria is met.  This makes it difficult to control 

demand and whilst the Trust might make inroads through its review 

processes it cannot control the flow of clients in and out of the system. 

In addition to this, clients’ needs are individually unique and no direct 

control can be made on this variable. 

b. There has been a 34% increase in safeguarding referrals over the last 

year and this trend is continuing. Also we have had 3 whole home 

investigations since April which require an individual review for each 

resident and significant investment of time from the Zones and the 

safeguarding team. This has significantly impacted on the capacity of 

social work teams to undertake the review of care packages which 

represent a significant element of the savings programme 

 

9. Taking the above factors into account the following can be drawn from a 

detailed analysis of the schemes underperforming. 

 

a. The £600K under delivery on non-residential packages of care 

between £70 and £606 (inclusive of Sandwell) is based on £550K of 

volume pressures and £50K of price pressures. Price is primarily down 

to the Domiciliary Care price increases detailed above and the volume 

issue is driven by client numbers being 55 higher than the budget in 

place (note increase since baseline pre CIP is 20 clients). 

b. The material factor behind the POC under £70 CIP under delivery is 

volume related pressure of circa £450K. There are 238 more clients 

Page 17



than the budget can accommodate at an average of £37 per week 

(note increase since baseline pre CIP is 35 clients). 

 

10. Another area of financial pressure outside of the CIP process is the 

overspend on Residential Short Stay budgets. Expenditure is £281K over 

budget but income has only over recovered by £9K. This highlights that the 

client contribution recovery rate is below anticipated levels. The budget was 

set on a client contribution rate of £175 per week but current planning shows 

the rate at £153 per week. In addition to this whilst activity is up on budgeted 

levels the average unit cost is also higher by £23 per week, per client. These 

factors have a negative impact on the financial position and when they 

present themselves together it can result in a material over spend position 

which is difficult to control. 

Action Plan 
 

13. The action plan to mitigate the risk of an end of year overspend covers the 
following areas of activity: -  
i. Management of demand, in particular short term residential care which 

relates to respite and emergency placements. We have implemented 

further controls in respect of authorisation of emergency placements.  This 

is to ensure appropriate use and prevent long term dependency on 

residential services. 

ii. In terms of respite we are reassessing users of short term respite against 

eligible need and offering respites services within the limits of the personal 

allowance.   

iii. We are reviewing the uptake of short break vouchers to ensure 

appropriate use and that the cost is within the personal allowance. 

iv. Improving delivery of savings on the care package reviews highlighted 

above: -   

a. We have established a review team of 10 people drawn 

proportionally from all adult service areas who will work for the 

remainder of the financial year and we expect that all reviews will 

be completed within this timeframe.  Individual staff will work to set 

targets and this activity will run alongside normal review activity 

within zones as part of day to day business. 

b. We are defining specific categories of service users to review which 

will be against FACS eligibility  

c. There are detailed operational plans underpinning these schemes. 

v. Alternative savings schemes that would not need consultation 

a. We are developing an enhanced brokerage service for high end 

specialist packages of care to ensure best value and better market 

control.  This process will harmonise with the commissioning of 

Continuing Health Care packages 

vi. Bringing forward 2015/16 savings:  

Page 18



14. The actions described above will potentially reduce the yearend forecast 
deficit at this stage to £564k. This is based on an incremental week on week 
reduction in costs (£633 per week from early September to year end). There 
are a number of caveats surrounding this forecast, in particular:  - 

i. No increase in ordinary residence cases over the £152k budget 

ii. No price pressures arising out of the current market testing exercise for 

domiciliary care 

15. Commissioners will continue to work with providers to examine other 
schemes to bring the budget into a balanced position by the financial year 
end. 

 

Page 19



 

Adult Social Care CIP Schedule 2014/15 Month 4 Appendix 1

Proposal
Estimate Achieved 

(FOT)*

£'000s £'000s

Operations

Community Alarms Charging -94 0

Community Alarms Withdrawal -48 0

LDDF -17 -17 

Carers Services -18 -18 

Back office savings / redesign of Care Model -100 -100 

Operation Total -277 -135 49%

In House LD

LD In House Review -150 -150 

In House LD Total -150 -150 100%

Independent Sector

2013/14 recurrent under spend -500 -500 

Sandwell Dom Care Block Contract Mgt -75 50

Review of High Cost Clients (over £606 per week) -500 -766 

Review of enhanced & medium cost clients (non residential between £70.01 to £606 per week) -350 125

Review of Low cost clients (under £70 per week) -400 56

Residential & Nursing Care standard & non standard fee rates (under £606 per week) -371 -237 

Non Residential charging policy -50 -50 

£500 payments to LD / MH Homes -122 -122 

LD Transport -40 -11 

Voluntary Block Contracts -38 -38 

Thera Block contract -15 -15 

Independent Sector Total -2,461 -1,508 61%

Total -2,888 -1,793 62%

Scheme Description

P
age 20



 

Page 21



 
 
     
 

Appendix 2B

Expenditure Type
Activity 

description
Forecast Variance

Activity £000 Unit Cost £000 £000

Care type

Residential Long Stay Bed Weeks 37,152 17,493 £470.85 17,601 108

Residential Short Stay Bed Weeks 2,731 1,226 £448.97 1,507 281

Nursing Long Stay Bed Weeks 4,589 2,378 £518.24 2,580 202

Nursing Short Stay Bed Weeks 254 125 £491.24 164 39

Direct Payments Weeks 19,801 5,872 £296.55 5,965 93

SWAPS Bed Weeks 1,017 315 £309.80 436 121

Domiciliary Care 8,315 8,847 532

Day Care 1,392 1,350 -42 

O/R 152 125 -27 

Total 37,268 38,575 1,307

ISC Adjustments

DP Reclaims -414 -345 69

Net Contract Adjustments -436 -413 23

IPP Recode -110 -154 -44 

Intermediate Care Recharge -97 -97 

Total -1,057 -1,008 49

Other Expenditure Areas

£500 One Off Individual Negotiated Payments 0 -56 -56 

Voluntary Block Contracts 211 214 3

Supported Living Block (Learning Disability) 378 378

Day Care Transport 154 183 29

Residential / Community Recovery Service (MHu65) 314 305 -9 

Staffing (MHU65 & Subs) 580 577 -3 

Residential / Intermediate Care Block (Older) 868 873 5

Bad Debt Provision 196 196

Other 111 110 -1 

Total 2,812 2,779 -33 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 39,023 40,346 1,323

INCOME

Residential Long Stay 37,152 -6,668 -£179.48 -6,699 -31 

Residential Short Stay 2,731 -479 -£175.41 -488 -9 

Nursing Long Stay 4,589 -902 -£196.58 -1,080 -178 

Nursing Short Stay 254 -35 -£137.55 -69 -34 

Domiciliary Care 0 -959 -1,105 -146 

Day Care 0 -207 -224 -17 

OLA In House -159 -167 -8 

OLA Independent Sector -252 -320 -68 

Other -41 -14 27

Income total -9,702 -10,167 -465 

NET COST 29,321 30,179 858

ASC Independent Sector Financial Performance Statement for the Year Ending 2014/15 (Care Type basis)

Period 4 - 31/07/2014

Annual Budget

Page 22



 

C
u

s
t
o

m
e

r
 S

e
r
v

ic
e

s
 &

 C
u

s
t
o

m
e

r
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

 W
h

a
t 

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
?

 
W

h
y

 i
s 

it
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
?
 

W
h

a
t 

d
ri

v
e

s 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s?

 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
cc

e
ss

 c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
u

b
li
c 

co
n

ta
ct

in
g

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
A

cc
e

ss
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 (
C

A
IP

) 
a

n
d

 

e
C

o
n

ta
ct

. 

F
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

o
p

e
ra

te
 i

n
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

in
 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 i
n

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

C
e

n
tr

e
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
n

ta
ct

 C
e

n
tr

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
s 

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 f
o

r 
a

 w
id

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

co
u

n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

T
h

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

A
cc

e
ss

 C
h

a
n

n
e

l 
a

n
d

 S
y
st

e
m

s 
T

e
a

m
 (

P
A

C
S

) 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 t

h
e

 b
a

ck
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
th

a
t 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

u
se

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 
fa

ci
n

g
 s

y
st

e
m

s.
 

T
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

w
e

b
si

te
 d

e
si

g
n

 &
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
d

ig
it

is
a

ti
o

n
, 

so
ci

a
l 
m

e
d

ia
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

is
 n

o
t 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 b

u
t 

d
o

e
s 

o
ff

e
r 

th
e

 

p
u

b
li
c’

s 
m

a
in

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 t

o
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
e

it
h

e
r 

fa
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
a

ll
 c

e
n

tr
e

 o
r 

m
a

in
 s

w
it

ch
b

o
a

rd
. 

H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 

m
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
re

 

st
a

tu
to

ry
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

E
le

ct
io

n
s,

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
si

n
g

. 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 :

 

•
 

o
ve

r 
2

6
1

,0
0

0
 c

a
ll

s 
to

 c
a

ll
 c

e
n

tr
e

 

•
 

o
ve

r 
7

1
,0

0
0

 v
is

it
o

rs
 

•
 

o
ve

r 
1

2
2

,0
0

0
 c

a
ll

s 
to

 t
h

e
 s

w
it

ch
b

o
a

rd
 

 C
a

ll
 c

e
n

tr
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 h
a

s 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 

 In
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

ch
a

n
n

e
l 
sh

if
t 

a
n

d
 d

ig
it

a
l 
b

y
 d

e
fa

u
lt

 

to
 a

cc
e

ss
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 w

e
b

si
te

 a
n

d
 

m
o

b
il
e

 d
e

vi
ce

s.
 

 O
ff

ic
e

 R
a

ti
o

n
a

li
sa

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
 (

O
R

P
) 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
T

e
ll
 u

s 
O

n
ce

 (
T

U
O

) 
 

 

D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta

ti
o

n
 C

o
st

 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

5
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

O
ff

ic
e

s 
o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 

m
o

d
e

l.
  

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
se

e
k

s 
to

 r
e

vi
e

w
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fa
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

o
ff

ic
e

s.
 A

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 

p
u

b
li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

. 

 

 
 

5
4

,0
0

0
 

a
p

p
ro

x 

 

 
N

il
 

0
1

/0
4

/1
5

 
M

a
jo

r 
Im

p
a

ct
 

A
 s

e
t 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

co
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

o
ff

ic
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

b
e

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 f

u
ll
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

  

  

6
. 

O
n

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

li
se

d
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 C
lo

se
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 a
n

d
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

O
ff

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
e

n
tr

a
li

se
 t

h
e

 “
C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s”

 

 
 

4
8

,0
0

0
 

 

 
 

1
/4

/1
5

 
M

a
jo

r 
Im

p
a

ct
 

•
 

T
h

e
 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 P
LA

IC
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

in
cr

e
a

se
 i
n

 f
o

o
tf

a
ll

 

•
 

A
g

e
 U

K
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 u

se
 t

h
e

 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 23



 

D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta

ti
o

n
 C

o
st

 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

se
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
n

d
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
P

LA
IC

) 

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 r
o

o
m

 i
n

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

ve
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

•
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 M

a
in

 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 a

t 
T

o
rq

u
a

y
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

b
e

co
m

e
 a

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 e
n

q
u

ir
y
 p

o
in

t 

•
 

C
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 u

se
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 &
 

T
o

rq
u

a
y
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

w
o

u
ld

 e
it

h
e

r 
h

a
ve

 t
o

 

tr
a

ve
l 
to

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 o
r 

m
a

k
e

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e

 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s.

 

•
 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

fa
ci

li
ta

te
d

 i
n

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 r
o

o
m

 

sp
a

ce
 &

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
v
e

l 
co

st
s 

to
 P

LA
IC

 

Page 24



 

 

Page 25



 

 
1

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
: 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
(E

IA
) 

–
 E

IA
 -

 D
R

A
F

T
 

 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

A
li

so
n

 W
h

it
ta

k
e

r 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
: 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 U
n

it
: 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
):

 
D

e
re

k
 M

il
ls

 
D

a
te

: 
1

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

: 
 

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

D
e

re
k

 M
il

ls
 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 H
e

a
d

: 
B

o
b

 C
la

rk
 

D
a

te
: 

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 

  

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 1

Page 26



 

 
2

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 -
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

  
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e

 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d

 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  

W
h

e
n

 w
il
l 

th
is

 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

�
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

�
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

�
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

�
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

ct
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 

a
n

y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

 i
ss

u
e

d
. 

  

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e

 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

C
lo

se
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 a
n

d
 T

o
rq

u
a

y 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
O

ff
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 

ce
n

tr
a

li
se

 t
h

e
 “

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s”
 

se
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
n

d
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

 

 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

£
1

0
2

k 

 

T
h

e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
co

st
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l (

to
 b

e
 

re
se

a
rc

h
e

d
).

 

0
1

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

 
 �
 

T
h

e
 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 P
LA

IC
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 

to
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 

fo
o

tf
a

ll 

�
 

A
g

e
 U

K
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 u

se
 t

h
e

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 r
o

o
m

 i
n

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

�
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 M

a
in

 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 a

t 
T

o
rq

u
a

y
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

b
e

co
m

e
 a

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 e
n

q
u

ir
y
 p

o
in

t 

�
 

C
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 u

se
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 &
 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
w

o
u

ld
 e

it
h

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 t
o

 

tr
a

v
e

l t
o

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 o
r 

m
a

ke
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 f
a

ci
li
ti

e
s.

 

�
 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 m

a
y 

h
a

ve
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 

fa
ci

li
ta

te
d

 i
n

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

ro
o

m
 s

p
a

ce
 &

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
v
e

l c
o

st
s 

to
 P

LA
IC

 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 27



 

 
3

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

 C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
s 

fo
u

r 
fa

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s:
 

 

�
 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
lo

ca
te

d
 a

t 
T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll
 T

o
rq

u
a

y 

�
 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
lo

ca
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 P

a
ig

n
to

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

�
 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

lo
ca

te
d

 w
it

h
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 

�
 

M
a

in
 R

e
ce

p
ti

o
n

 l
o

ca
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

 T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 t
o

 c
lo

se
 t

w
o

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
O

ff
ic

e
s 

in
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 &

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 a

n
d

 c
e

n
tr

a
li
se

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

fa
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 

P
LA

IC
. 

 

T
h

e
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 i
s 

th
a

t 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
il
l h

a
v
e

 o
n

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

li
se

d
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 o

ff
ic

e
 w

it
h

in
 T

o
rb

a
y
 (

e
xc

lu
d

in
g

 M
a

in
 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
).

 A
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 w
il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 

w
it

h
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 o

n
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

 

2
. 

W
h

o
 i

s 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

  N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i

m
p

a
ct

 

�
 

C
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 u

se
 t

h
e

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 o

r 
B

ri
xh

a
m

 o
ff

ic
e

 w
ill

 n
o

 lo
n

g
e

r 
b

e
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
y
 C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 (
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
il
l 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
 f

o
r 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 i
n

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 &

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

u
si

n
g

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
 

ch
a

n
n

e
ls

) 

�
 

T
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 o
ff

ic
e

 m
a

y
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 h
ig

h
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 if
 o

th
e

r 
co

n
ta

ct
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 a
re

 n
o

t 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
. 

�
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 e

g
 w

a
it

in
g

 t
im

e
s,

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 

�
 

T
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 m
o

d
e

l 
in

 P
LA

IC
 w

il
l 
b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 m
o

d
e

l,
 t

h
is

 m
a

y
 c

a
u

se
 s

o
m

e
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

co
n

fu
si

o
n

 u
n

ti
l t

h
e

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 b
e

co
m

e
s 

fa
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
cu

st
o

m
e

rs
. 

�
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 c
o

st
s 

fo
r 

so
m

e
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 t
ra

ve
ll
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
, 

a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
is

 m
a

y
 b

e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 o

n
li
n

e
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s.
 

�
 

A
ll
 b

a
ck

 o
ff

ic
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s 
w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 if
 it

 i
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
fa

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s 
a

re
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 in
 t

h
e

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

Page 28



 

 
4

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

th
a

t 
a

re
 c

lo
si

n
g

. 

�
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 p
u

b
li
c 

p
e

rc
e

p
ti

o
n

  

 

 P
o

si
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 

�
 

T
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l o
f 

sa
v
in

g
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 w

il
l 
a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l s
ta

ff
 t

o
 b

e
 t

ra
n

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
a

ll
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
n

 

a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 r
e

a
lis

in
g

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

�
 

S
tr

e
a

m
li
n

in
g

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

ta
rg

e
t 

�
 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
co

u
ld

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 i
n

co
m

e
 f

o
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

�
 

T
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l o
ff

ic
e

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e

 a
 s

e
cu

ri
ty

 p
re

se
n

ce
. 

(C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 S
e

cu
ri

ty
 T

e
a

m
 i
s 

p
re

se
n

t 
a

t 
th

e
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

o
n

ly
) 

�
 

S
a

v
in

g
 o

f 
Q

m
a

ti
c 

(c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
q

u
e

u
in

g
 s

y
st

e
m

) 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
lic

e
n

ce
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y 
u

se
d

 i
n

  T
o

rq
u

a
y
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

(£
4

,8
0

0
) 

�
 

A
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
sh

if
t 

- 
a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

fa
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
il
l c

h
o

o
se

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 u

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 o
r 

w
e

b
si

te
 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

ra
ve

l 
to

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

o
ff

ic
e

 

�
 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
to

 r
e

-e
n

g
in

e
e

r 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 
co

n
ta

ct
 a

n
d

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
s 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
o

f 

�
 

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 l
in

e
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 c
o

st
s 

(2
0

1
3

/1
4

 T
o

rq
u

a
y 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
4

5
k
, 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
1

8
k
, 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
n

il
) 

�
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

ch
e

d
u

li
n

g
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

 (
st

a
ff

) 
a

n
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 f

le
xi

b
ili

ty
 

�
 

C
o

n
si

st
e

n
cy

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 

 

Page 29



 

 
5

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 

3
. 

H
a

v
e

 y
o

u
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  

 In
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

d
e

a
lt

 w
it

h
 8

8
,0

0
0

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 e
n

q
u

ir
e

s.
 B

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

lis
in

g
 a

t 
o

n
e

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e

 

se
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
s 

th
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
. 

 

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 F
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 v
o

lu
m

e
s 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
–

 5
0

,2
9

6
 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
(I

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 D

e
sk

)-
 2

9
,5

1
5

 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

–
 8

,2
4

9
 

 M
a

n
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 a

lr
e

a
d

y 
h

a
ve

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

. 
In

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 b
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 e
xp

e
n

si
v
e

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 c

h
a

n
n

e
l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

re
 is

 

a
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

d
ig

it
a

l 
ch

a
n

n
e

ls
 o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
. 

h
tt

p
:/

/d
ig

it
a

l.
ca

b
in

e
to

ff
ic

e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

b
o

u
t/

  
A

s 
w

e
ll
 a

s 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
st

 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

, 
o

n
li
n

e
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
e

n
a

b
le

s 
cu

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

o
 s

e
lf

 s
e

rv
e

 a
t 

a
 t

im
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

m
. 

 

   

Page 30



 

 
6

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 

4
. 

H
o

w
 w

il
l 

co
n

su
lt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

 

   

 

1
. 

P
u

b
li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 v
ia

 q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

  

2
. 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

se
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

 

3
. 

D
ir

e
ct

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ke
h

o
ld

e
rs

 

4
. 

W
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 lo
ca

l 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s 

  

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
A

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
s,

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

to
 e

ve
n

ts
 /

 f
o

cu
s 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u

p
s 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

. 
U

se
 b

u
ll
e

t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s.

 

   

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
H

a
s 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

  
H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
lt

e
r 

yo
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 

   

 

Page 31



 

 
7

 

P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 

 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

C
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 
m

a
y 

h
a

ve
 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
y
 t

ra
v
e

ll
in

g
 t

o
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

. 
  

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 

 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

ck
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 
. 

T
h

e
 

w
e

b
si

te
 c

a
n

 b
e

 t
ra

n
sl

a
te

d
 in

to
 5

1
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
s 

u
si

n
g

 G
o

o
g

le
 t

ra
n

sl
a

te
. 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
ra

n
sg

e
n

d
e

re
d

 
P

o
si

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 w

it
h

 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

Page 32



 

 
8

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
it

h
 

o
n

li
n

e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

- 
2

4
/7

 3
6

5
 d

a
y
s 

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 p

re
fe

rs
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 u

se
rs

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
se

 

th
e

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

 o
ff

ic
e

s 

 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

 

 

•
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
 im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 i
s 

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
, 

th
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
so

m
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
re

a
s 

e
g

  

o
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 -
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 o

r 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 h
o

m
e

le
ss

 p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 

o
 

D
e

b
t 

A
d

v
ic

e
 -

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 d
e

b
ts

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

a
n

d
 r

e
n

t 
a

rr
e

a
rs

 d
u

e
 t

o
 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 w

a
it

in
g

 l
is

ts
 a

n
d

 f
e

w
e

r 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
w

it
h

 b
u

d
g

e
ti

n
g

 

 

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

 

 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 -

 T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 h

a
s 

y
e

t 
to

 b
e

 c
la

ri
fi

e
d

 b
o

th
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
 w

it
h

in
 T

o
rb

a
y
. 

 

  

 S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

Page 33



 

 
9

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 

9
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ri

se
 a

n
y

 n
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?

 

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

a
ch

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 7

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 e
a

ch
 i
m

p
a

ct
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 /
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 /

 e
lim

in
a

te
d

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

. 
W

h
a

t 
w

a
ys

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a

ct
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
?

  

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l i

m
p

a
ct

 o
f 

cl
o

si
n

g
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 a

n
d

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

li
si

n
g

 i
n

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s 

th
a

t 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

se
 t

h
e

se
 o

ff
ic

e
s:

 

 

1
. 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

2
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

3
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 

4
. 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 p
o

ve
rt

y
 is

su
e

s 
a

n
d

 d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 T
o

 m
it

ig
a

te
 t

h
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 t
h

e
se

 g
ro

u
p

s 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

ct
io

n
s 

a
re

 b
e

in
g

 e
xp

lo
re

d
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
ct

: 

 

�
 

In
st

a
ll
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

o
n

 c
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

s 
li
n

e
s 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
 T

h
e

se
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

lo
ca

te
d

 e
it

h
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s 
o

r 
a

t 
o

th
e

r 
su

it
a

b
le

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

it
h

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

il
l 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s.

 

�
 

In
st

a
ll
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
se

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
o

d
s 

fo
r 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 t
o

 u
se

 a
t 

th
e

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
a

b
le

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 

u
se

 a
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

to
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

si
te

. 
 

�
 

T
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
e

b
si

te
 is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
, 

re
a

d
a

b
il
it

y
, 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 a
cc

e
ss

 b
y
 m

o
b

ile
 d

e
v
ic

e
s 

p
lu

s 
a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

co
n

te
n

t.
  

�
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

n
li
n

e
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
is

 a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 t

o
 im

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 a

ll
o

w
 g

re
a

te
r 

cu
st

o
m

e
r 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 m

o
re

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

2
4

/7
. 

 

�
 

W
e

b
 c

h
a

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 e

xp
lo

re
d

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
se

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
e

a
m

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 a
llo

w
 C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 t
o

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

e
 b

y
 s

ig
n

p
o

st
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
e

b
 

p
a

g
e

 o
r 

a
n

sw
e

r 
si

m
p

le
 q

u
e

ri
e

s.
 

�
 

In
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 o

r 
co

u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y 

th
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 a

n
d

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
. 

�
 

E
xp

lo
re

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
ca

n
n

e
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

. 
In

 a
d

d
it

io
n

, 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 m
e

th
o

d
s 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

 
1

0
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

O
 B

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 

1
0

. 
O

u
tl

in
e

 p
la

n
s 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

  

T
h

e
 f

u
ll
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 o

n
ce

 it
 is

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
ct

u
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

y 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
  

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 5

: 
R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 –
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
 W

H
E

N
 A

LL
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 A

N
D

 E
IA

 F
IN

A
LI

S
E

D
  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 
T

ic
k

 �
 

R
e

a
so

n
s/

ju
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
re

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 a
ct

io
n

 

1
1

. 

           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 

C
le

a
rl

y 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

 o
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

ju
st

if
y 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
u

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(a
n

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

o
n

e
 m

a
y 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l)

. 
P

le
a

se
 s

e
le

ct
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 j

u
st

if
y 

th
e

 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

 

 

 

  

Page 35



 

Children’s Services    Director:  Richard Williams 

       Executive Lead: Cllr Ken Pritchard 

 

Current and Proposed Budget and Staffing 

 

 2014/2015 2015/2016 
Gross 

Expenditure 

Gross 

Income 

Net 

Budget 

FTE Proposed 

Budget 

Schools Services 

 

53,309,000 (49,930,000) 3,379,000 47.12 2,941,000 

Commissioning Unit * 

 

1,960,100 (314,000) 1,646,100 22.78 1,451,100 

Safeguarding and 

Wellbeing 

21,591,000 (1,315,000) 20,276,000 250.05 19,993,000 

Totals 

 

76,860,100 (51,559,000) 25,301,100 319.95 24,385,100 

 
* This figure includes voluntary sector grants 

 

Draft Proposals 
 

 

  Proposed 

Budget Change 

2015/2016 

1 Restructure of Early Years Services  (360,000) 

2 Efficiencies within School Transport – post 16 SEN students on SEN courses (38,000) 

3 School Transport Review (40,000) 

4 Reduction in Action for Children Grant (100,000) 

5 Reduction in Children’s Centre Contract (50,000) 

6 Careers South West – reducing contributions (45,000) 

7 Review of Day Care & Domiciliary Service (52,000) 

8 Changes to Management Arrangements & refocusing of Youth Provision Parkfield (50,000) 

9 Young Carers Review (20,000) 

10 Portage Service Review (36,000) 

11 Organisational Development – increase charges for Safeguarding training (25,000) 

12 Central Costs – review of management functions and Business Support (100,000) 

Agenda Item 4a

Page 36



 

Schools Services 

 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

• School Improvement 

• Behaviour Support - EOTAS 

• Ethnic Minority Achievement Service – support to 

pupils with English as an additional language 

(EAL) 

• Early Years and Childcare Advisory Service 

• Special Education Needs Support Services 

• School Admissions 

• School Transport 

• Governor Services 

 

Local authorities are bound by 200+ statutory duties 

covering education and social care and have a duty to 

provide suitable education for all children and is 

accountable for the performance of all schools including 

academies. 

This includes pupils who have been excluded, have 

medical conditions, are in hospital, are being educated at 

home or need support as English is not their first 

language. 

As at May 2014 there are 18 maintained settings (13 

primary/2 secondary/2 special/1PRU), 24 academies (17 

primary, 6 secondary, 1 special) with over 19,000 pupils. 

Torbay has approximately 75 children educated at home, 

320 pupils in the virtual school, 150 receive hospital 

tuition annually, nearly 500 EAL pupils who receive 

support  and 5500, 0-4 year olds who need appropriate 

provision. Over 4000 school place applications are 

processed annually with approximately 1800 pupils 

needing school transport. 

Torbay has higher than national average SEN pupils at 

3.1% (national 2.8%). 

 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implementa

tion Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

 3,379,000   2,941,000    

1.   Restructure of Early Years Services 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  360,000     

P
age 37



 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implementa

tion Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

2.   Efficiencies within School Transport:  

 

This proposal will reduce the subsidy for 

post 16 students on SEN courses over the 

next two years.   

 

  38,000   01/04/15 

 

Minor Impact 

In July 2013, the Council agreed to phase out 

subsidy of discretionary transport for students 

including post 16 students on mainstream 

courses.   

The potential impact of this proposal is being 

explored through consultation.  An Equality 

Impact Assessment has been undertaken in 

relation to this proposal. 

 

3.  School Transport 

 

This proposal concerns a further review of 

School Transport. 

  40,000  Associated 

redundancy 

costs and 

pension 

strain if 

applicable  

 

01/04/15 Internal 

The Authority is currently investigating potential 

options for the future delivery arrangements for 

School Transport. 

There are no risks identified with this proposal 

and no potential impact of service users. 

 

 

  

P
age 38



 

Commissioning Unit 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

This includes the redesigned commissioning unit including 

housing strategy, youth services, external contracts with 

Careers South West & Action for Children. 

To deliver services to meet statutory duties to provide 

sufficient educational provision for 0-4, Raising 

Participation Age and providing support to vulnerable 

young people 

Over 6600 young people are supported into Employment, 

Education of Training (EET) including over 2000 vulnerable 

young people. 

 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implementa

tion Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

 1,562,000   1,367,000    

4.   Reduction in the Action for Children 

Contract by 10% in 2014/15 and 2015/16 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

  100,000     

5.   Children’s Centre Contract 

 

This proposal will form part of a general 

review of 0-5 services across Torbay. 

 

  50,000   01/04/15 Minor Impact 

This is in addition to the reduction of 10% allowed 

in the current contract. The impact of this will need 

to be explored with AforC. 

An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken 

in relation to this proposal. 

6.   Careers South West 

 

This proposal concerns a reduction in the 

Careers South West Contract for 2015/16. 

  45,000   01/04/15 Minor Impact 

The Local Authority is proposing to consult with 

Partners to reduce the level of contribution that is 

made to Careers South West. 

It is proposed this will be mitigated by reduction in 

accommodation cost with little impact on service 

users. 

P
age 39



 

Safeguarding and Wellbeing 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

• Safeguarding Hub  

• Children In Need Service  

• Family Solutions  

• Safeguarding & Family Support – includes Child 

Protection & Proceedings, The ARC, 

• Intensive Family Support  

• Specialist Services – includes Fostering, Adoption 

, Permanence Team, Children with Disabilities  

• Quality Assurance – includes Safeguarding Unit , 

Torbay Safeguarding Children's Board , PARIS 

Team , Organisational Development , Family 

Group Conference  

• Integrated Youth Support  includes Parkfield & 

Youth Service 

The work is of a statutory nature, the legislation contained 

within the  Children Act  1989 and subsequent 

amendments and updates, Children Act 2004, as well as 

the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 and the Care 

Planning, Placement and Review (England) Regulations 

2010 , Fostering Regulations 2011, The Adoption and 

Children Act,  Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000 

To provide targeted interventions and crisis support to 

children, young people and their families, act as corporate 

parent to children looked after. 

 

In 2013/14 there were over 7700 contacts to the 

Safeguarding Hub. 

 

In the financial year 2012/2013 there were 785 children 

and young people referred to the Family Support . 

The demand for the service fluctuates depending on 

referrals by a variety of agencies and the general public. 

 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implementa

tion Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

 20,276,000   19,993,000    

7.  Review of Day Care and Domiciliary 

Care service 

 

This proposal ensures that packages of 

care are reviewed against criteria set. Also 

includes a review of specialist services 

which provides services for children with 

disabilities. 

  52,000   01/04/15 Minor Impact 

The current Children and Young People attending 

the Kool Club will be accommodated by an extra 

age group at the Council operated Saturday Club.  

The current contract with the Torbay Citizen’s 

Advice Bureau that operates a tailored benefit 

advice service to the Disability Service will be 

terminated as currently it is not a service being 

taken up by Children, Young People and Families. 

 

P
age 40



 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implementa

tion Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

8. Changes to Management 

Arrangements and re-focusing of Youth 

Provision Parkfield Youth Centre 

 

 (Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 

 

 

 

50,000  

 

   

9.  Young Carers 

 

This proposal concerns a review of the 

Young Carers Service 

 

  20,000  Associated 

redundancy 

costs and 

pension 

strain if 

applicable  

 

01/04/15 Minor Impact 

This proposal concerns a review of the current 

Young Carers Service that meets the needs of the 

Young Carers population within Torbay.  

This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which there can be detailed 

consultation with service users and their families 

this will be completed.  The results of the 

consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 

Assessment, will then be considered in reaching 

decisions about the future of these services. As 

such this level of saving is not guaranteed until this 

process has been completed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 41



 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implementa

tion Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

10.  Portage Service 

 

This proposal concerns a review of the 

Portage Service.  This proposal will form 

part of the general review of 0-5 services 

across Torbay. 

  36,000   01/04/15 Minor Impact 

This proposal concerns a review of the current 

portage service, the potential impact of this 

proposal will be explored through consultation 

with Partners and service users across Torbay.  The 

proposal will form part of the general review of 0-5 

services across Torbay. 

This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which there can be detailed 

consultation with service users and their families 

this will be completed.  The results of the 

consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 

Assessment, will then be considered in reaching 

decisions about the future of these services. As 

such this level of saving is not guaranteed until this 

process has been completed. 

 

11.   Organisational Development 

 

This proposal; concerns an increase to the 

training charges made to external 

partners in relation to Safeguarding 

Children (Child Protection) Training. 

 

 25,000     Internal 

There are no risks identified with this proposal and 

no potential impact of service users. 

12.  Central Costs  

 

This proposal concerns a review of all 

management functions across the Service 

and a review of the Business Support 

Service. 

  100,000  Associated 

redundancy 

costs and 

pension 

strain if 

applicable  

01/04/15 Internal 

There are no risks identified with this proposal and 

no potential impact of service users. 

 

 

P
age 42



 

 
1

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
 -
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 R
e
v
ie

w
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 S

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 (
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
) 
C

o
u
rs

e
s
  

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 

T
ri
c
ia
 H
a
rw
o
o
d
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
r,
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
K
e
n
 P
ri
tc
h
a
rd
  

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

S
u
z
ie
 F
ra
n
k
li
n
 /
 R
ic
h
a
rd
 W

il
li
a
m
s
  

D
a
te
: 

 
D
a
te
: 
 
 

   
 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 1

Page 43



 

 
2

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

C
o

p
y

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
te

m
p

la
te

 
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
6
/1
7
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 
If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

   E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

 w
it

h
in

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 –

 
R

e
v

ie
w

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

o
s

t 
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
  

 

 
1

2
,0

0
0
 

N
o

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

C
o

s
ts
 

0
1

/0
9

/1
5
 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
h

a
s

e
 

o
u

t 
s

u
b

s
id

y
 o

f 
d

is
c

re
ti

o
n

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s

t 
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

m
a

in
s

tr
e

a
m

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

. 
 T

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
th

e
 p

o
s

it
io

n
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

o
s

t 
1

6
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

u
s

in
g

 
s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
. 
 

 A
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
. 

 
X
 

 

   E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s

 w
it

h
in

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 -

 
R

e
v

ie
w

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

o
s

t 
1

6
  

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 

 

 
2

4
,0

0
0
 

N
o

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

C
o

s
ts
 

0
1

/0
9

/1
6
 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
h

a
s

e
 

o
u

t 
s

u
b

s
id

y
 o

f 
d

is
c

re
ti

o
n

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s

t 
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

m
a

in
s

tr
e

a
m

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

. 
 T

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
th

e
 p

o
s

it
io

n
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

o
s

t 
1

6
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

u
s

in
g

 
s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
. 
 

 A
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
. 

 
X
 

 

Page 44



 

 
3

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

is
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t-

1
6

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
, 

a
ls

o
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t-

1
6

 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 t
a

x
i/

m
in

ib
u

s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
/ 

c
o

lle
g

e
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

b
s

id
is

e
 S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t-

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 
o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

 w
h

e
re

 a
 n

e
e

d
 i

s
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
. 
 

 A
ll 

lo
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ty
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 t
o

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

 s
c

h
o

o
l 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
. 

 T
h

is
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
s

: 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

s
s

is
ta

n
c

e
 t

o
 p

u
p

ils
 o

f 
s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
c

h
o

o
l 

a
g

e
 (

5
-1

6
) 

tr
a

v
e

lli
n

g
 t

o
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
if

 t
h

e
y

 l
iv

e
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 w
a

lk
in

g
 d

is
ta

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

a
re

s
t 

s
c

h
o

o
l 

(t
h

is
 i

s
 t

w
o

 m
ile

s
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
ils

 a
g

e
d

 7
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

re
e

 m
ile

s
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
ils

 a
g

e
d

 8
 a

n
d

 o
v

e
r)

. 

•
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 p
u

p
ils

 f
ro

m
 l

o
w

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

 a
re

 e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

 f
re

e
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 n

e
a

re
s

t 
s

u
it

a
b

le
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 

th
a

t 
a

re
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 t
w

o
 a

n
d

 l
e

s
s

 t
h

a
n

 s
ix

 m
ile

s
 a

w
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 a

 d
e

n
o

m
in

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

s
c

h
o

o
l 

u
p

 t
o

 1
5

 m
ile

s
 a

w
a

y
. 

•
 

N
o

rm
a

lly
 a

s
s

is
ta

n
c

e
 i

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
a

 f
re

e
 b

u
s

 p
a

s
s

. 
 

 
 In

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 p

h
a

s
e

 o
u

t 
th

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 o

f 
d

is
c

re
ti

o
n

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

E
N

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 m
a

in
s

tr
e

a
m

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

. 
T

h
is

 m
e

a
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
fr

o
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 a
ll 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 m
a

in
s

tr
e

a
m

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

 
(e

v
e

n
 i

f 
th

e
y

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
e

d
) 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 a
 £

4
0

0
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 s
c

h
o

o
l/

c
o

lle
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 p

a
y

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

p
ri

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

u
s

 p
a

s
s

. 
 

 T
h

e
 p

o
s

it
io

n
 o

f 
p

o
s

t 
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 i

n
 l

ig
h

t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

s
e

e
k

s
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c

e
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 i

n
e

q
u

it
y

 o
f 

s
o

m
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 p
a

y
in

g
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 (

a
ll 

th
o

s
e

 o
n

 m
a

in
s

tr
e

a
m

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

) 
w

h
ils

t 
o

th
e

rs
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 m

a
k

e
 n

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
th

o
s

e
 o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

).
 L

ik
e

w
is

e
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

a
x

i 
o

r 
m

in
ib

u
s

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
. 

 U
n

d
e

r 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

a
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 t
a

x
i/

m
in

ib
u

s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
o

f 
u

p
 t

o
 £

6
0

0
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

fr
o

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5
 (

£
4

0
0

 f
o

r 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

 o
n

 
lo

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
) 

a
n

d
 u

p
 t

o
 £

6
0

0
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
/w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 f

ro
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
6

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 

Page 45



 

 
4

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 a

n
d

 a
lig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
s

t 
o

f 
a

 b
u

s
 p

a
s

s
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
. 

(N
.B

. 
If

 t
h

e
 c

o
s

t 
o

f 
a

 b
u

s
 p

a
s

s
 i

s
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 

£
6

0
0

 t
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 l

o
w

e
r.

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

 T
o

rb
a

y
 T

e
rm

ri
d

e
r 

c
o

s
ts

 £
5

4
0

 f
o

r 
a

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

 
a

n
d

 2
0

1
6

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
e

x
c

e
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 g

iv
e

n
 h

e
re

.)
 

 W
h

e
re

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

/w
it

h
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s

 a
re

 a
s

s
e

s
s

e
d

 a
s

 n
e

e
d

in
g

 s
p

e
c

ia
l 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 e

.g
. 

ta
x

i 
o

r 
m

in
ib

u
s

 
th

e
y

 
w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 

to
 

re
c

e
iv

e
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 

lo
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
o

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 
a

b
o

v
e

 
th

e
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
i.

e
. 

a
ll 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

c
o

s
ts

 o
v

e
r 

£
6

0
0

 /
£

4
0

0
 f

ro
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 a
n

d
 £

6
0

0
 f

ro
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
6

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
e

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 
 

 W
h

ile
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 b
e

in
g

 p
u

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s

a
v

in
g

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 i
t 

is
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

w
ill

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 i

n
e

q
u

it
y

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

lic
y

 a
n

d
 e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

p
o

s
t-

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
tr

e
a

te
d

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
h

e
y

 a
re

 a
s

k
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l/
c

o
lle

g
e

. 
 

   

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

W
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t?

 
 P

o
s

t 
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

 w
h

o
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
 d

is
c

re
ti

o
n

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

s
s

is
ta

n
c

e
: 

in
 2

0
1

3
-1

4
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 4

4
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
. 

A
ls

o
 p

o
s

t-
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 t
a

x
i/

m
in

ib
u

s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

: 
in

 2
0

1
3

-
1

4
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 8

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

. 
  P

a
re

n
ts

 /
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
c

h
ild

re
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 p

o
s

t-
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

/h
a

v
e

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
. 
 

  

 
 

Page 46



 

 
5

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m

o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 l
o
c
a
lly
 a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
 Y
o
u
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
r-
p
in
n
e
d
 b
y
 u
p
-t
o
-

d
a
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
le
, 
fa
c
tu
a
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
ff
e
c
t.
  
F
o
r 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
, 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
fi
le
, 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 d
a
ta
, 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 h
e
lp
s
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 a
 p
ic
tu
re
 a
ro
u
n
d
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 In
 2

0
1

3
-1

4
 a

re
 3

3
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

 t
ra

v
e

lli
n

g
 b

y
 t

a
x

i 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 1
1

 t
ra

v
e

lli
n

g
 b

y
 b

u
s

. 
T

h
is

 
e

x
c

lu
d

e
s

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 t
ra

v
e

lli
n

g
 b

y
 b

u
s

 t
o

 S
o

u
th

 D
e

v
o

n
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
s

 t
h

e
 c

o
lle

g
e

 n
o

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
s

 t
h

is
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 d
ir

e
c

tl
y

. 
N

u
m

b
e

rs
 

w
ill

 v
a

ry
 f

ro
m

 y
e

a
r 

to
 y

e
a

r 
a

s
 n

e
e

d
s

 a
re

 v
e

ry
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s

: 
 

B
u
s
 P
a
s
s
 

T
a
x
i/
M
in
ib
u
s
 

T
o
ta
l 

 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

S
o

u
th

 D
e

v
o

n
 C

o
lle

g
e

 S
E

N
 S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

0
 

1
2
 

1
2
 

E
x

e
te

r 
C

o
lle

g
e

 S
E

N
 S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

B
ri

d
g

w
a

te
r 

C
o

lle
g

e
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 &
 S

p
o

rt
s

 A
c

a
d

e
m

y
 

2
 

0
 

2
 

W
E

S
C

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

0
 

2
 

2
 

D
a

rt
in

g
to

n
 B

id
w

e
ll 

B
ro

o
k

 S
c

h
o

o
l 

0
 

1
 

1
 

M
a

y
fi

e
ld

 S
c

h
o

o
l 

0
 

1
0
 

1
0
 

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

 E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 T
o

tn
e

s
 

2
 

5
 

7
 

C
o

m
b

e
 P

a
ff

o
rd
 

7
 

0
 

7
 

D
u

c
h

y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 (
p

a
rt

 o
f 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 t

w
ic

e
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

) 
0
 

1
 

1
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

1
1
 

3
3
 

4
4
 

 T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
c

o
s

t 
o

f 
a

 b
u

s
 p

a
s

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 i
s

 £
5

2
5

. 
F

o
r 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 £
5

4
0

. 

Page 47



 

 
6

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

T
h

e
 c

o
s

t 
o

f 
p

ro
v

id
in

g
 S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 t

o
 3

3
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 i
s

 e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
 o

f 
£

7
0

,0
0

0
 -

 £
7

5
,0

0
0

. 
T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
a
x
i/
m
in
ib
u
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 m

e
d
ic
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
-1
4
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
1
9
,8
3
0
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
a
y
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 e
s
c
o
rt
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 

a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 

 T
h

e
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 o

f 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 f

u
lly

 f
u

n
d

 S
E

N
 a

n
d

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 i

s
 n

o
t 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

, 
a

s
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 
in

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 i

n
c

re
a

s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
s

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 m
a

d
e

 o
n

 i
t 

fo
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
s

s
is

ta
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 S
p

e
c

ia
l 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

N
e

e
d

s
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

b
u

s
 p

a
s

s
e

s
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

d
 b

y
 4

%
 i

n
 2

0
1

2
, 

a
d

d
in

g
 £

2
2

,0
0

0
 t

o
 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 M

a
y

fi
e

ld
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s

 a
d

d
e

d
 1

0
 p

la
c

e
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

b
e

 P
a

ff
o

rd
 h

a
s

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

3
5

 p
la

c
e

s
. 

A
 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 c

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i

n
 B

ri
x

h
a

m
 a

n
d

 1
2

 p
u

p
ils

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 4
 t

a
x

is
. 

 B
u

rs
a

ri
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

o
s

t-
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 i

n
 c

a
re

, 
le

a
v

in
g

 c
a

re
 o

r 
in

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

s
o

m
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
 D

is
c

re
ti

o
n

a
ry

 
b

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 a
re

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 l

o
w

 i
n

c
o

m
e

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 w
it

h
 c

o
s

ts
 s

u
c

h
 a

s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 

d
ir

e
c

tl
y

 b
y

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 i
n

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

s
. 
 

 M
a

n
y

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 h
a

v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t-

1
6

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

E
N

 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

D
e

v
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 a

s
k

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

5
0

0
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

, 
 E

s
s

e
x

 i
s

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 £
5

1
0

, 
L

e
ic

e
s

te
r 

a
re

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 £
2

5
2

, 
L

in
c

o
ln

s
h

ir
e

 a
re

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 £
4

0
5

 a
n

d
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s

h
ir

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 r

a
n

g
e

 f
ro

m
 £

4
5

0
-£

6
1

8
. 

S
o

m
e

 
o

f 
th

e
s

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 h
a

v
e

 a
 d

is
c

o
u

n
te

d
 r

a
te

 f
o

r 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 l
o

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
; 

o
th

e
rs

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 b

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
lo

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
. 

  

Page 48



 

 
7

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

4
. 

H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
* 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  *d
e
le
te
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
n
y
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
f 
s
o
 h
o
w
?
 F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 /
 s
u
rv
e
y
 /
 e
v
e
n
ts
?
  
R
e
m
e
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

it
 m
a
y
 b
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 o
n
 a
n
y
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
 A
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 y
o
u
 /
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 i
f 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 w
h
ic
h
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 y
o
u
 w
ill
 /
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
 (
i.
e
. 
g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 b
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
r 
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
).

 
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
c

o
m

m
e

n
c

e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 M

a
y

o
r’

s
 d

ra
ft

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 i

n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
  

M
o

n
e

y
 w

a
s

 t
h

e
n

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
v

e
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
 a

n
d

 a
 d

e
c

is
io

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 r
e

-c
o

n
s

u
lt

 t
o

 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f

o
r 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 r
a

n
 f

o
r 

8
 w

e
e

k
s

 a
n

d
 c

lo
s

e
d

 o
n

 7
th

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
. 

 F
o
r 
th
is
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
a
p
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 a
g
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
e
d
 o
n
 t
a
x
i/
m
in
ib
u
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
(3
2
1
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
le
tt
e
rs
 s
e
n
t)
. 

 A
ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
lle
g
e
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
) 
g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 b
) 
p
a
re
n
ts
/s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 P
a

re
n

t 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 F
o

ru
m

. 
  

 T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
e

re
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

ir
 s

a
y

, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 

a
 q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

n
a

ir
e

 w
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

 s
it

e
. 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

In
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

, 
a

 t
o

ta
l 

o
f 

2
3

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
. 

In
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 a

ls
o

 2
3

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
. 

It
 i

s
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 h

o
w

 m
a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 w
e

re
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 a

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 g
re

a
t 

m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 w

e
re

 d
is

a
g

re
e

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 t
h

re
e

 m
a

in
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
: 

C
o
s
t 

•
 
P
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
fi
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 –
 b
o
th
 t
h
o
s
e
 o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 j
u
s
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 f
o
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

•
 
F
a
m
ili
e
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
fe
e
l 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
h
o
ic
e
 n
o
t 
to
 p
a
y
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
a
is
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
 

•
 
F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
o
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 
F
e
a
r 
th
a
t 
a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
te
p
 t
o
 b
e
in
g
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 
c
o
s
t 

F
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 o
ft
e
n
 n
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
in
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
h
o
o
s
e
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 s
o
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
l 
a
 l
o
n
g
 

w
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

Page 49



 

 
8

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 
T
h
e
s
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
u
ts
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
h
e
s
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 o
f 
w
a
lk
in
g
, 
c
y
c
lin
g
 o
r 
tr
a
v
e
lli
n
g
 b
y
 m

o
p
e
d
 

•
 
T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 a
d
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 t
o
 a
n
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

•
 
P
o
s
t-
1
6
 S
E
N
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 g
iv
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 o
p
ti
m
a
l 
lif
e
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 o
th
e
r 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

e
.g
. 
a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
 a
t 
a
g
e
 1
6
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
a
li
ty
 

•
 
T
h
e
s
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
o
u
ld
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
m
 m

o
re
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

•
 
A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
, 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
in
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
a
te
r 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 

•
 
C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
s
a
fe
ty
 i
f 
fr
e
e
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

o
re
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 w
a
y
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l/
m
o
re
 p
a
re
n
ts
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
r 
to
 g
e
t 
th
e
m
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

A
 p
h
a
s
e
d
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 (
o
v
e
r 
3
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c
o
s
ts
 

fo
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
).
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
tu
d
e
n
t 

g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
. 
T
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
a
y
 i
n
 i
n
s
ta
lm
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 s
p
re
a
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t.
  

 
 

 
 

Page 50



 

 
9

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 s
ta
te
 t
h
a
t 
a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 e
q
u
a
lly
. 
 T
h
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
re
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 i
f 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 m
o
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
n
 o
th
e
rs
 –
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
. 
 Y
o
u
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
re
 t
o
 b
e
 n
o
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 ‘
n
e
u
tr
a
l’ 
c
o
lu
m
n
 t
o
 

e
x
p
la
in
 w
h
y
. 
 E
V
E
R
Y
 B
O
X
 M
U
S
T
 B
E
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 –
 i
f 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 e
it
h
e
r 
‘N
o
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t’
 o
r 

‘N
o
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t’
. 
 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le
 

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 
h

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
/ 

c
o

lle
g

e
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
a

s
 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
. 

  
 B

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 a
re

 n
o

w
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 c
a

re
rs

, 
in

 c
a

re
, 

le
a

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c

e
ip

t 
o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 T
h

e
s

e
 b

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 a
re

 
a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 d

ir
e

c
tl

y
 b

y
 p

o
s

t-
1

6
 

in
s

ti
tu

ti
o

n
s

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 

a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

lk
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
/ 

c
o

lle
g

e
 

fo
r 

a
s

s
is

ta
n

c
e

. 
  

B
u

rs
a

ri
e

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
t-

1
6

 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 o

n
 l

o
w

 i
n

c
o

m
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

w
ill

 a
ff

e
c

t 
a

p
p

ro
x

im
a

te
ly

 
5

0
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

m
a

y
 

c
a

u
s

e
 s

o
m

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

h
a

rd
s

h
ip

 a
n

d
/o

r 
lim

it
 t

h
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

s
o

m
e

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

 t
o

 c
h

o
o

s
e

 f
ro

m
. 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
/ 

c
o

lle
g

e
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
a

s
 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
. 

  
 B

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 a
re

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

o
s

t-
1

6
  

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 l
o

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
s

. 
 

P
a

re
n

ts
 /

 c
a

re
rs

 o
f 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 
S

E
N

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

/w
it

h
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s

 m
a

y
 

b
e

 a
ff

e
c

te
d

 b
y

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l.

  
 

  

Page 51



 

 
1
0
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

 

W
h

e
re

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
/w

it
h

 
m

e
d

ic
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 s
p

e
c

ia
l 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 

e
.g

. 
ta

x
i 

o
r 

m
in

ib
u

s
, 

th
e

y
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 
re

c
e

iv
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

lo
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 

 U
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 a
g

re
e

d
 i

n
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 S
E

N
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 

w
ill

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
to

 m
a

k
e

 a
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

w
a

rd
s

 t
h

e
 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 r

e
m

o
v

e
 t

h
e

 i
n

e
q

u
it

y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 
a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
/r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 
s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s

e
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

s
 a

ll 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 

b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

ir
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

. 
 

 P
o

s
t-

1
6

 b
u

rs
a

ri
e

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 l
o

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
s

. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

w
ill

 a
ff

e
c

t 
a

p
p

ro
x

im
a

te
ly

 
5

0
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 p

o
s

t 
1

6
 S

E
N

 
c

o
u

rs
e

s
/w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
. 

T
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
m

a
y

 c
a

u
s

e
 s

o
m

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

h
a

rd
s

h
ip

 a
n

d
/o

r 
lim

it
 t

h
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

s
o

m
e

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

 t
o

 
c

h
o

o
s

e
 f

ro
m

. 

  

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

lly
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 w

o
m

e
n

 o
r 

m
e

n
 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

c
k

 o
r 

fr
o

m
 a

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 

b
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 (

B
M

E
) 
 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
lly

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

o
s

e
 f

ro
m

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

e
th

n
ic

it
ie

s
  

 
R

e
lig

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c

k
 o

f 
b

e
lie

f)
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

lly
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
re

lig
io

n
s

  
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 l
e

s
b

ia
n

, 
g

a
y

 
o

r 
b

is
e

x
u

a
l 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

lly
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 l

e
s

b
ia

n
, 

g
a

y
 o

r 
b

is
e

x
u

a
l 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
tr

a
n

s
g

e
n

d
e

re
d
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

lly
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 t

ra
n

s
g

e
n

d
e

re
d
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i

n
 a

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
lly

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

o
s

e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 m
a

rr
ie

d
 o

r 
in

 a
 c

iv
il 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

  

Page 52



 

 
1
1
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

m
a

rr
ia

g
e

 o
r 

c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
W

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 p

re
g

n
a

n
t 

/ 
o

n
 m

a
te

rn
it

y
 l

e
a

v
e
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

lly
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 p

re
g

n
a

n
t 

o
r 

o
n

 m
a

te
rn

it
y

 l
e

a
v

e
 

 
S

o
c

io
-e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 
(I

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 c
h

ild
 

p
o

v
e

rt
y

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 

d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
) 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
/ 

c
o

lle
g

e
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
a

s
 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
. 

  
 B

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 a
re

 n
o

w
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 c
a

re
rs

, 
in

 c
a

re
, 

le
a

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c

e
ip

t 
o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

s
e

 b
u

rs
a

ri
e

s
 a

re
 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 d
ir

e
c

tl
y

 b
y

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 
in

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 
a

d
v

is
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
lk

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 s
c

h
o

o
l 

/ 
c

o
lle

g
e

 
fo

r 
a

s
s

is
ta

n
c

e
. 

  
 B

u
rs

a
ri

e
s

 a
re

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

o
s

t-
1

6
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 l
o

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
s

. 
  

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

m
a

y
 c

a
u

s
e

 s
o

m
e

 
fi

n
a

n
c

ia
l 

h
a

rd
s

h
ip

 f
o

r 
s

o
m

e
 p

o
s

t 
1

6
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
/w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

. 
 

  

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt

h
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 (

H
o

w
 

w
ill

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y

) 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
. 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
a

b
o

v
e

) 
 

A
re
 a
n
y
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 f
ro
m
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 O
R
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
re
a
s
?
 P
le
a
s
e
 e
x
p
la
in
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 (
y
o
u
 m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
is
it
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
c
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
) 

 N
o

n
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
 

Page 53



 

 
1
2
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
a

b
o

v
e

) 
 

A
re
 a
n
y
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 f
ro
m
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
?
 P
le
a
s
e
 e
x
p
la
in
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 (
y
o
u
 m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
is
it
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
c
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
) 

 N
o

n
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

O
u
tl
in
e
 e
a
c
h
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 7
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 e
a
c
h
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 /
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 /
 e
lim
in
a
te
d
 o
r 
m
it
ig
a
te
d
. 
W
h
a
t 
w
a
y
s
 c
a
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
b
e
 m
in
im
is
e
d
?
  

 T
h

e
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

c
o

s
t 

fo
r 

tr
a

n
s

p
o

rt
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
o

r 
c

o
lle

g
e

 f
o

r 
p

o
s

t-
1

6
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 S
E

N
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

/w
it

h
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

in
g

 t
o

 p
h

a
s

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
y

 f
o

r 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

 o
n

 a
 

lo
w

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 m
it

ig
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t.

  
S

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

u
p

 t
o

 £
6

0
0

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
in

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5
 (

£
4

0
0

 f
o

r 
s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 l
o

w
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
),

 a
n

d
 i

n
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

6
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 u

p
 t

o
 

£
6

0
0

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

  
In

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

a
 b

u
s

 p
a

s
s

. 
 

 P
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 S
E

N
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
/w

it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

w
a

rd
s

 t
h

e
ir

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 c

o
s

ts
, 

th
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

b
s

id
is

e
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

 o
v

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s

 a
 n

e
e

d
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
. 
 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s

 a
n

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

 w
h

e
re

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e

s
t 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i

n
 e

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
c

ir
c

u
m

s
ta

n
c

e
s

 a
n

d
 c

a
s

e
s

 o
f 

g
e

n
u

in
e

 h
a

rd
s

h
ip

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

 i
s

 o
p

e
n

 t
o

 a
ll 

fa
m

ili
e

s
. 
 

   

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

T
h
e
 f
u
ll 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 k
n
o
w
n
 o
n
c
e
 i
t 
is
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

Page 54



 

 
1
3
 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
th
o
d
s
. 
 

 T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

p
p

e
a

ls
 f

o
r 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 a

s
s

is
ta

n
c

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
p

p
e

a
ls
 

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
. 
T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
ro
m
 

a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(a
n
d
 m
o
re
 

th
a
n
 o
n
e
 m
a
y
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 a
 

s
in
g
le
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P
le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le
c
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 4
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m
a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

x
 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 i
n

 o
v
e

r 
tw

o
 y

e
a

rs
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

 l
o
w

 i
n

c
o
m

e
, 

w
it
h

 a
 y

e
a

r’
s
 n

o
ti
c
e

. 
B

u
rs

a
ri
e

s
 w

ill
 g

e
n
e

ra
lly

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 
fr

o
m

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 o

n
 l
o

w
 i
n
c
o

m
e

 b
u

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 a
p

p
e
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
. 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 55



Priorities and Resources 201

 

Additional Information Requested
 

 

Children’s Services 

 

Proposal 4 Reduction in the Action for Children Contract

Proposal 5 Children’s Centre Contract

 

Update Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Action for Children were informally advised at their Strategic Advisory Board held on 16th July 2014 

of the proposed budget cuts to the current Children’s Centre Contract.  They were advised on how 

their Service Users should feedbac

responses will be directed to the Early Years inbox by mid August 2014.

 

Action for Children were formally advised of the proposed cuts At a Contract Management meeting 

held on 30th July 2014.  The Council will receive Action for Children formal response by 23rd August 

2014.  They will respond in two forms.  

1. The impact on services of the 10% reduction 

2. The impact of  the additional £50,000

 

 

Priorities and Resources 2015/2016 

Additional Information Requested 

Reduction in the Action for Children Contract 

Children’s Centre Contract 

Update Equality Impact Assessment – What was the result of the consultation exercise?

Action for Children were informally advised at their Strategic Advisory Board held on 16th July 2014 

of the proposed budget cuts to the current Children’s Centre Contract.  They were advised on how 

their Service Users should feedback to the Council as part of the budget consultation process.  These 

responses will be directed to the Early Years inbox by mid August 2014. 

Action for Children were formally advised of the proposed cuts At a Contract Management meeting 

014.  The Council will receive Action for Children formal response by 23rd August 

2014.  They will respond in two forms.   

The impact on services of the 10% reduction - £100,000 

The impact of  the additional £50,000 

consultation exercise? 

Action for Children were informally advised at their Strategic Advisory Board held on 16th July 2014 

of the proposed budget cuts to the current Children’s Centre Contract.  They were advised on how 

k to the Council as part of the budget consultation process.  These 

Action for Children were formally advised of the proposed cuts At a Contract Management meeting 

014.  The Council will receive Action for Children formal response by 23rd August 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 2

Page 56



 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
: 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
(E

IA
) 

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 –
 D

R
A

F
T

  
 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

R
a

ch
a

e
l 

W
il

li
a

m
s 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

: 
S

ch
o

o
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

(E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

) 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 U

n
it

: 
S

ch
o

o
l 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

: 
C

h
il

d
re

n
s 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

D
a

te
 s

ta
rt

e
d

: 
N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

D
a

te
: 

6
t
h
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

: 

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

K
e

n
 P

ri
tc

h
a

rd
 

 
E

x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 

H
e

a
d

: 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 W
il

li
a

m
s 

D
a

te
: 

6
t
h
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

D
a

te
: 

 
6
t
h
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 3

Page 57



 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

 

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

 b
y

 1
0

%
 i

n
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

 

 
2

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 
N

o
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
s 

 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

  
0

1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 

0
1

/0
4

/1
5
 

 

T
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s 

a
n

 o
p

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
co

n
tr

a
ct

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 

(d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
) 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 v
a

lu
e

 b
y
 1

0
%

 a
 y

e
a

r.
  
T

h
is

 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l m

a
y
 l
im

it
 t

h
e

 a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 d
e

li
ve

r 
so

m
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 

a
ch

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 T
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

is
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l w

il
l 
b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

. 
 A

n
 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l.
 

 
 X
 

 

 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

 

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

  
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

 

 
5

0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
s 

 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 

0
1

/0
4

/1
5
 

 

T
h

is
 i
s 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
cu

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 C
o

n
tr

a
ct

. 
 T

h
e

 L
o

ca
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

il
l 

b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 1
0

%
 c

u
t 

st
a

te
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

. 
 T

h
is

 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l m

a
y
 l
im

it
 t

h
e

 a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

 
 X
 

 

Page 58



 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

 

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 d
e

li
ve

r 
so

m
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 

a
ch

ie
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 T
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

is
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l w

il
l 
b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

. 
 A

n
 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l.
 

   

Page 59



 

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

 In
 2

0
1

2
 t

h
e

 L
o

ca
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

. 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
’s

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 T
o

rq
u

a
y 

(E
ch

o
, 

Z
ig

 Z
a

g
s,

 W
a

tc
o

m
b

e
, 

C
o

ck
in

g
to

n
),

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 (
P

a
rk

si
d

e
, 

O
ld

w
a

y
),

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 

(F
u

rz
e

h
a

m
).

  C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
ll
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
w

it
h

 a
 c

h
il
d

 a
g

e
d

 0
 t

o
 5

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

st
a

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

y
 s

e
ss

io
n

s,
 y

o
u

n
g

 M
u

m
s 

to
 b

e
, 

p
a

re
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
, 

d
a

d
’s

 c
lu

b
s 

a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 f
a

m
il
y 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 f

a
m

il
ie

s.
  

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
se

e
k
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 w

it
h

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 b
y
 1

0
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 1

0
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

ill
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

£
5

0
,0

0
0

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 t
o

 £
8

5
0

,0
0

0
. 
 

 T
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
h

a
v
e

 a
 m

in
im

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 f

o
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s 

w
h

o
 u

se
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

  
 T

h
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
co

n
tr

a
ct

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 in
 2

0
1

1
, 

h
a

s 
a

 c
la

u
se

 w
h

ic
h

 a
ll
o

w
s 

th
e

 lo
ca

l a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 1
0

%
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

th
e

 a
ss

ig
n

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l £

5
0

,0
0

0
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 f
a

ll
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
is

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 

2
. 

W
h

o
 i

s 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

 T
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s 

m
a

y 
b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l:
 

•
 

A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
s 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

•
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 –

 f
a

m
il
ie

s 
w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 0

 t
o

 5
 a

n
d

 e
xp

e
ct

a
n

t 
p

a
re

n
ts

. 
•
 

P
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
h

o
 d

e
li
v
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 s

it
e

s 
fo

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 v
is

it
o

rs
, 

Jo
b

 C
e

n
tr

e
P

lu
s.

   
  

 
 

Page 60



 

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
3

. 
H

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  
T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ch
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 c
o

ve
rs

 a
ll
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

o
f 

th
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
re

 P
u

rp
o

se
. 

 A
s 

li
st

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

te
rs

 m
u

st
:-

 

1
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
n

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 f

a
m

il
ie

s,
 w

it
h

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s,
 i
n

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
: 

  
  
   

C
h

il
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

ch
o

o
l 
re

a
d

in
e

ss
 

  
  
   

   
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y 
im

p
ro

ve
d

: 

  
  
   

   
P

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s,

 s
e

lf
 e

st
e

e
m

 a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 s
k
il
ls

 

  
  
   

   
C

h
il
d

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 l
if

e
 c

h
a

n
ce

s.
 

 T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
re

 p
u

rp
o

se
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

2
. 

A
ss

e
ss

 n
e

e
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

3
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l a

re
a

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 e
a

rl
y 

ye
a

rs
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 c

h
il
d

ca
re

 

4
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 b

a
se

d
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
in

 g
re

a
te

st
 n

e
e

d
, 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

xt
 o

f 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

5
. 

A
ct

 a
s 

a
 h

u
b

 f
o

r 
th

e
 lo

ca
l c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 s
o

ci
a

l c
a

p
it

a
l 
a

n
d

 c
o

h
e

si
o

n
 

6
. 

S
h

a
re

 e
xp

e
rt

is
e

 w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 
to

 im
p

ro
ve

 q
u

a
li
ty

. 

 S
e

ct
o

r 
Le

a
d

e
rs

 b
e

li
e

v
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
o

f:
 

7
. 

R
e

sp
e

ct
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 

8
. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
cr

o
ss

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l/

a
g

e
n

cy
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s.

 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
h

a
s 

tw
o

 d
e

si
g

n
a

te
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

s 
C

e
n

tr
e

s.
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 a

n
d

 P
a

ig
n

to
n

 w
it

h
 B

ri
xh

a
m

. 
 T

h
e

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

w
e

re
 i
n

sp
e

ct
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

 

a
n

d
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

 g
o

o
d

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 g

ra
d

e
s,

 t
h

e
se

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
s 

to
o

k 
p

la
ce

 u
n

d
e

r 
a

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 a
n

d
 b

o
th

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

a
re

 d
u

e
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
-i

n
sp

e
ct

e
d

. 

Page 61



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 T

h
e

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 o

u
tr

e
a

ch
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
a

re
 b

a
se

d
 w

it
h

in
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
, 

th
e

y 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
 

th
a

t 
is

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
ll
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
w

it
h

 a
 c

h
il
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

5
 (

a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 6

,6
9

0
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
cr

o
ss

 T
o

rb
a

y
).

 I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

th
e

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 f

a
m

ily
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

5
. 

 T
h

e
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
a

ch
 3

4
%

 o
f 

a
ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
ch

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

 
  

4
. 

H
o

w
 h

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
su

lt
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

 
  

In
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 t
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l t

o
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 1
0

%
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

(£
1

0
0

K
) 

li
st

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
. 

 I
n

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 A

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 c
o

n
d

u
ct

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
n

io
r 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 t

e
a

m
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

o
f 

A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

. 
 I

n
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 

2
0

1
4

 t
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
m

e
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 S
ch

o
o

l S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

(L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
) 

to
 o

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
sa

v
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 m

o
d

e
l 

 T
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 d
id

 n
o

t 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
th

a
t 

w
e

re
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
ll
y
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 f
a

m
il
ie

s.
 A

ll 
g

ro
u

p
s 

th
a

t 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
. 

 A
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
se

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

n
o

 p
u

b
li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

 In
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
4

, 
th

e
 L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l t

o
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 1
0

%
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

£
5

0
,0

0
0

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

. 
 A

 t
o

ta
l b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
£

1
5

0
,0

0
0

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

. 
 T

h
e

 L
o

ca
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

il
l m

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 A
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 o
n

 2
7
th

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
lis

e
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

 
5

. 
O

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 k

e
y

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

  

  

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

 

 

    

Page 62



 

     P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 (
0

-5
 y

rs
 o

ld
) 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

 T
h

is
 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 (
0

-5
 y

rs
 o

ld
) 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

 T
h

is
 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 (
0

-

5
 y

rs
 o

ld
) 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s.
 T

h
is

 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 (
0

-

5
 y

rs
 o

ld
) 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s.
 T

h
is

 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 

st
a

g
e
 

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 
 

A
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 m

e
n

 o
r 

w
o

m
e

n
 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
w

il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

A
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 m

e
n

 o
r 

w
o

m
e

n
 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
w

il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

ck
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 

st
a

g
e
 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 

st
a

g
e
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 

st
a

g
e
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
ra

n
sg

e
n

d
e

re
d

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 

st
a

g
e
 

Page 63



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 

st
a

g
e
 

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 
A

n
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 w

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
o

r 
o

n
 m

a
te

rn
it

y 
le

a
v
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

w
il
l 

b
e

 f
u

ll
y
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 

A
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 w

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
o

r 
o

n
 m

a
te

rn
it

y 
le

a
v
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

w
il
l 

b
e

 f
u

ll
y
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 

 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

A
n

y
 s

o
ci

o
-e

co
n

o
m

ic
 im

p
a

ct
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

A
n

y
 s

o
ci

o
-e

co
n

o
m

ic
 im

p
a

ct
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

A
n

y
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

A
n

y
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

se
ct

io
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

  N
o

n
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
, 

th
is

 w
il
l b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

 N
o

n
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
, 

th
is

 w
il
l b

e
 f

u
ll
y 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 

   

S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?
 

  

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
1

0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 
 

Page 64



 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

  
 S

e
ct

io
n

 5
: 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

ct
io

n
  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

T
ic

k
 �

 
R

e
a

so
n

s/
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
 

1
1

. 
           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 
  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d
 

 

 

 

Page 65



 

 
1

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

C
h
il
d
re

n
 w

it
h
 D

is
a
b
il
it
ie

s
 

 
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
a
m

e
: 

E
la

in
e
 A

tk
in

s
o

n
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

: 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

: 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

  
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

: 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
a
te

 s
ta

rt
e
d

: 
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te

: 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

 a
re

 f
a
c
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 o

v
e
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le

 o
f 
y
e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A

s
 a

 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 w

h
ile

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
y
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
o
n
 p

a
rt
ic

u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

u
r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 T
h
is

 E
IA

 w
ill
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 c

a
rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

th
o
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
IA

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
t 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

 /
 H

e
a
d

 S
ig

n
 o

ff
 (

w
h

e
n

 f
in

a
l 
v

e
rs

io
n

):
  

 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

(s
) 

K
e
n

 P
ri

tc
h

a
rd

 
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

R
ic

h
a
rd

 W
il

li
a
m

s
 

D
a
te

: 
 

D
a
te

: 
 

 

 

P
le

a
s
e
 N

o
te

: 
T
h
is

 E
IA

 i
s
 c

u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a

 d
ra

ft
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
- 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 f
u
lly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is

 E
IA

 w
ill
 b

e
 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

   
 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 4

Page 66



 

 
2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e
ra

ll
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
  

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

  
W

h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 

K
id
s
 c
lu
b
s
 

 A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 

 

 
5
2
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
5
 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
ill
 n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
re
c
e
iv
e
 s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fo
rm
. 
 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
m
a
y
 a
ls
o
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
s
o
m
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 

 T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A
n
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

  X
 

Page 67



 

 
3

   S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
: 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l/

s
tr

a
te

g
y
/d

e
c
is

io
n

 
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

F
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
 

m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 

o
f 
c
a
re
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
d
a
y
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 d
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 

 In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
A
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
-a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
, 
s
o
m
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 o
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
b
u
t 
s
ti
ll 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
. 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
: 
 

 

•
 
T
e
rm
in
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
id
w
e
ll 

B
ro
o
k
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
1
4
 t
o
 1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 e
v
e
ry
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
t 
o
n
 

a
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 l
if
e
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 i
n
to
 a
d
u
lt
h
o
o
d
. 
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
1
2
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
u
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
 t
o
 5
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 t
e
rm
in
a
te
 t
h
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 
T
e
rm
in
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
. 
 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 

to
 h
e
lp
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
g
e
d
 0
 t
o
 1
8
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
la
im
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

fu
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 t
e
rm
in
a
te
 t
h
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
 P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 

c
la
im
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
. 
 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
. 
  

•
 
P
a
re
n
ts
 /
 C
a
re
rs
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
  
w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
. 
  

•
 
L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
id
w
e
ll 
B
ro
o
k
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 –
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 

•
 
C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 –
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
  

Page 68



 

 
4

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 2
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

T
o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 m
o
ra

l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 d
u
ty

 u
n
d
e
r 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro

m
o
te

 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t,
 a

s
 a

 c
o
u
n
c
il,

 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th

e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 a
t 
a
n
 e

a
rl
y
 

s
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 f
u
lly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
/p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
 t
h
e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
  

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
0
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
. 
  

 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
: 
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 5
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
 T
h
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 e
v
e
ry
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
t 
o
n
 a
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
. 
  

 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
: 

F
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 
D
a
te
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
p
e
a
t 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 

T
o
ta
l 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
1
 t
o
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
1
 

5
7
 

N
o
t 
k
n
o
w
n
 

5
7
 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
2
 t
o
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2
  

9
8
 

2
9
 

1
2
7
 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
3
 t
o
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

4
7
 

6
6
 

1
1
3
 

 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
, 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
lla
te
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 

a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 
 

  

Page 69



 

 
5

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D
e
ta
il
s
 

4
. 

H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?

 
   

 
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 

 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
) 

•
 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
u
b
lic
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 
A
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
ile
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 A
ls
o
 a
 m
a
il 
s
h
o
t 
to
 a
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
‘D
e
C
iD
e
’.
 

 T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 g
a
v
e
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 a
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 w
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
to
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 1
9

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 w
it
h
 a
 r
e
tu
rn
 d
a
te
 o
f 
1
6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
. 
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
0
0
 m
a
il 

o
u
ts
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 1
9

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
 U
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1
6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
, 
1
5
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 D
a
y
 C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 P
la
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 C
lu
b
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 g
ro
u
p
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 P
ro
je
c
t,
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
IS
 B
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 

K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 P
ro
je
c
t.
  
 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
is
 1
8
0
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
u
t 
Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 a
n
d
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 
D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
ll 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
  

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 9
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 e
x
p
re
s
s
in
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
ro
u
n
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 t
o
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 f
ro
m
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
A
ll 
s
ta
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
v
a
lu
a
b
le
. 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

Page 70



 

 
6

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D
e
ta
il
s
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 (
 w
h
o
 i
s
 t
h
e
 O
p
e
ra
to
r 
o
f 
th
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
),
 w
is
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 i
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
re
a
. 
 T
h
e
y
 w
ill
 

b
e
 w
ill
in
g
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
p
o
t 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 b
a
s
is
 o
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 5
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
. 
 A
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
t 
a
 s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
£
1
,2
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 p
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
in
-h
o
u
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 C
lu
b
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
tt
e
n
d
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
. 

 In
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
z
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 e
v
e
ry
 d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 
 

 

 P
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

  
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u

tr
a
l 

Im
p

a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 
 

  

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
d
. 
 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 

a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
d
. 
 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 

a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

e
x
p
lo
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 N
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 
  

Page 71



 

 
7

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.  

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
if
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 

to
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 l
e
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t,
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 

B
u
re
a
u
 U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
F
a
m
ily
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
v
ia
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r.
 

  
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty

 
 

 
Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
c
u
re
d
. 
 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 

a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 

c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
a
x
im
u
m
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t.
  
B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

in
te
rn
e
t,
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
F
a
m
ily
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
v
ia
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r.
 

   Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 n
e
w
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
p
o
t 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 o
r 

u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 

 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
y
 

c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

 

Page 72



 

 
8

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

 
 

 
N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
  

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
if
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 

to
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 l
e
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
 

 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
a
x
im
u
m
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t.
  
B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

in
te
rn
e
t,
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
F
a
m
ily
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
v
ia
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r 

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t,
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 

B
u
re
a
u
 U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
F
a
m
ily
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
v
ia
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r.
 

  
P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

Page 73



 

 
9

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

  

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 N
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

8
b

. 
C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 O
th
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 m
a
y
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 

  

 
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 3
: 

M
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

  
 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 t
o
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t.
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 n
e
w
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
p
o
t 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 o
r 
u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 

 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 s
im
ila
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

a
d
v
is
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la
im
s
. 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
, 
w
h
o
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
. 
  

 

 S
e
c
ti

o
n

 4
: 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  
 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

1
0
. 
O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

 

Page 74



 

 
1
0
 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 
 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
’s
 C
a
re
 P
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

 S
e
c
ti

o
n

 5
: 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

 –
 T
O
 B
E
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 W

H
E
N
 A
L
L
 S
E
C
T
IO
N
S
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
 A
N
D
 E
IA
 F
IN
A
L
IS
E
D
  

 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
ic

k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o

n
s
/j
u

s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
c
ti

o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 
c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

 
C

le
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m
a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 
 

(1
) 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
m

in
im

a
l 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

 
im

p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 K

o
o
l 

 
C

lu
b
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
 

 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

 
m

it
ig

a
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
p
o
t 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 
 (2

) 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 Q

u
id

s
 

 
fo

r 
K

id
z
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
w

h
e
th

e
r 
to

 
 

a
c
c
e
p
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 c

a
n
 

 
d
e
liv

e
r 
th

e
 c

u
rr
e
n
t 
b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

 
e
v
e
ry

 d
a
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

Page 75



 

 
1
1
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

Page 76



From: Atkinson, Elaine 

Sent: 31 July 2014 14:33 

To: Hollins, Nick 

Subject: FW: UNCLASSIFIED: Consultation Process - Kool Club 

Attachments: Provider Letter - Kool Club 30.4.14.doc 

 

 

 

From: Jo Parsons [mailto:joparsons@lifeworks-uk.org]  

Sent: 23 May 2014 19:04 

To: Atkinson, Elaine 
Cc: Hobson, Caroline 

Subject: FW: UNCLASSIFIED: Consultation Process - Kool Club 

 

Hi Elaine 

 

I appreciated you finding the time to chat briefly today when you clearly wasn’t expecting my visit. 

 

Lifeworks is keen to continue provide a Kool Club in the Torbay area. We would be willing to do so on an 

individual spot purchasing basis or through direct payments for the five members that are currently 

attending, and future referrals at a subsidised cost of £1,200 per annum, per member. We would invoice 

this on a monthly basis in arrears.  

 

We have a number of enquiries for membership and in order to support the dynamics of the group we 

are willing to offer fully subsidised placements to each of  these young people for a period of six months. 

  They are all young people that we feel will/should qualify for short breaks funding and so during this 

time we will suggest to families that they make contact with the learning disability team to discuss the 

possibility of continuation funding at the end of the six month period. We will be happy to provide any 

supporting information you may require. 

 

The withdrawal of the premises with less than 48 hours notice informed to us on a scribbled piece of 

paper was a shock. I was not happy when I contacted Vicki Weller with her explanation that ‘ no one 

knew how to contact us’, this only helped to make a bad situation worse.  Any ideas or 

recommendations the council are able to offer for a replacement venue would be greatly appreciated. 

We will in the interim continue to operate without premises on a meet and pickup point basis.   

 

Obviously families need to know what is happening sooner rather than later. If Torbay Council are able 

to agree to Lifeworks proposal perhaps a joint letter would be a positive way to communicate these 

changes.   

 

We recognise the difficult times for Local Authorities but we do hope that Lifeworks and Torbay Council 

will continue to work together to ensure that young people with learning disabilities are not isolated, 

have the opportunity to improve their life chances and to be actively involved within their communities. 

 

You may be interested to know that Lifeworks also run projects which are funded by grants and have  

benefited many young people and families from the Torbay area over a number of years, namely the 

‘Life skills Academy’ and ‘Breaking the Barrier’.  

 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 5

Page 77



I have attached for your information the letter I received and below is the confirmation of arrangements 

for our meeting.  

 

Kind regards 

 

Jo 

 

 

Jo Parsons 

Charity Director 

 
Lifeworks Charity Ltd. 
Blacklers, Park Road, Dartington Hall Estate,  
Dartington, Devon TQ9 6EQ  
 
Facebook: http://www.facebook.com/lifeworksUK 
Website: http://www.lifeworks-uk.org/ 

Page 78



Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 6

Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



DRAFT 

Meeting:  Council Date:  25th September 2014 

Wards Affected:  All 

Report Title:  Children’s Services 5 Year Cost Reduction Plan 

Is the decision a key decision? Yes   

Executive Lead Contact Details:  Mayor Oliver – Executive Lead Finance, Councillor 

Pritchard, Executive Lead Children’s Services 

Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Lisa Finn, Finance Manager – People; Tel 01803 

208283; email lisa.finn@torbay.gov.uk 

1. Purpose and Introduction 

  

1.1 Torbay Council’s Children’s Services has faced a number of challenges over the last 

few years. In addition to increased demands, the service has been subject to 

significant budget pressures which have had to be managed in the context of reducing 

financial resources for all council services. 

 

1.2 Torbay Council received an Ofsted judgement of inadequate in October 2010 which 

was in a period of uncertainty within Children Services due to the full impact of the 

deaths of both Victoria Climbie in 2000 and Baby Peter in 2007.  After this social care 

across the UK became increasingly risk averse. This was borne out by the increasing 

number of looked after children both nationally and within the Bay: as at March 2010 

there were 180 looked after children which increased to 305 by March 2013.  Due to 

this uncertainty and disruption within the service a number of practitioners left the 

profession which placed an unprecedented pressure on Council budgets to fund 

increasing costs of care and the employment of agency social workers to manage 

increasing caseloads. 

 

1.3 Children’s Services is currently forecast to spend £28.5m by the end of March 2015. 

This will result in an overspend of £3.2m against the approved budget of £25.3m. This 

is after the application of £2m from a social care contingency and £1m from the PFI 

sinking reserve – both of which were approved by Council in February 2014. The 

Director of Children’s Services is forecasting at outturn an overspend of £1.4m due to 

the impact of the new work packages that are currently being implemented within the 

service 

 

1.4 Following a period of sustained improvement Torbay Council Children's Services 

received an adequate judgement from Ofsted in March 2013. In the subsequent 

months the service has experienced a considerable increase in demand but has 

sustained a strong base of quality social work practice and effective arrangements 

with partners. This will ensure that it has both the capacity to improve outcomes for 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 7

Page 92



children and young people and respond to the budgetary pressures highlighted in the 

report. 

 

1.5 The Children’s Services Budget over the last 3 years and the current year is as 

follows: 

 

 

Table 1 – Summary of Children’s Services Budget 2011 to 2015 

Service Area 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Schools 

(excluding 

Dedicated 

Schools 

Grant(DSG))* 

£6.4m £4.4m £8.8m 

(including 

Families 

Services) 

£2.8m 

Commissioning 

& Performance 

£3.3m £2.7m £0.9m £1.8m 

Safeguarding & 

Wellbeing 

£11.4m £13.3m $ £18.8m $ £20.6m ** 

Total Net 

Budget 

£21.1m £20.4m £28.5m £25.2m 

*DSG is a ringfenced grant for the funding of schools and pupil related services.  

** This figure excludes £2m from contingency and £1m from reserves. 

$ The £5.5m increase in budget from 2012/13 to 2/13/14 is mainly due to service reorganisation. 

 

1.6 Within Safeguarding and Wellbeing, the majority of the expenditure is in the placement 

of children in either:- 

 

a. an in-house foster care placement where the carer is registered with Torbay 

Council.  

 

b. an independent sector foster carer (fostering ISP) where the carer is registered 

with a private sector provider agency and the contract is with the provider agency. 

 

c. a residential placement where Torbay Council commissions the independent 

sector to provide round the clock care and in some cases education. 

  

Table 2  

Placement Type 2012/13 Spend 2013/14 Spend 2014/15 forecast 

Fostering – in 

house 

£2.25m £2.22m £2.81m 

Fostering – ISP £3.31m £4.09m £3.43m 

Residential £3.80m £5.47m £5.87m 

Total Spend £9.36m £11.78m £12.11m 

Looked After 

Numbers 

305 314 305 

 

Page 93



 

1.7 Audit Commission benchmarking has demonstrated that Torbay’s Children’s Services is 

out of line with its statistical neighbours in terms of the number of looked after children 

(LAC) per 10,000 child population.  

 

Table 3 

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.8 Therefore the Director of Children’s Services commissioned Social Finance to support 

the service in identifying a number of work packages to reduce the costs within the 

Safeguarding and Wellbeing Service. This has enabled the service to begin the 

process of a fundamental cultural shift and challenge to current practice whereby 

social workers are able to balance risk and improve outcomes within a different set of 

procedures and a reshaped footprint of service provision. 

 

1.9 The purpose of this report is to set out a 5 year cost reduction plan which includes 

new ways of working that will reduce the numbers and costs for children looked after.  

As this will need investment it is recommended that earmarked reserves of up to 

£4.9m are used to fund these new initiatives.  However this could be in excess of 

£4.9m if the forecast spend for Safeguarding and Wellbeing for the current financial 

year cannot be managed within the Council’s overall budget. 

 

1.10 These reserves are not uncommitted funds and will be required in future years. It is 

essential that the reserves used are replenished as set out within this report. Members 

will be fully aware of the financial challenges faced by Torbay due to the continuing 

austerity measures and the coalition government’s public sector deficit reduction 

plans.  If the expected cost reductions within Safeguarding and Wellbeing are not 

delivered it will have a major impact upon the financial resource base for the council 

Local Authority LAC Rate/10,000 

based on 2012/13 data 

Blackpool 166 

Torbay 121 (134 for 2013/14) 

Telford & Wrekin 82 

Bournemouth 82 

Portsmouth 73 

Plymouth 73 

Isle of Wight 69 

Southend –on-Sea 62 

Poole 49 

North Lincolnshire 46 

Cornwall 45 

Statistical Neighbour Average 75 

Average 

Bournemouth/Southend/Plymouth 

72 

Page 94



and its Medium Term Resource Plan and will affect the resources available to deliver 

all other priority services.   

 

2. Proposed Decision 

 

2.1 Council agree to: 

 

a) approve the 5 year financial strategy for Children’s Services – Safeguarding and 

Wellbeing. 

 

b) fund the projected overspend: in 2015/16 (£2.3m) and 2016/17 (£1.1m) from 

reserves as set out in within the report.  

 

c) note the forecast overspend of £1.4m in 2014/15 which will be managed by in-year 

savings. 

 

d)  move the £2 million social care contingency into the Children’s Services base 

budget (Safeguarding & Wellbeing) in 2014/15 and future years. 

 

e)  the improvement actions as recommended by Social Finance as set out within the 

report. 

 

f) the Director of Children’s Services and the Children’s Services Finance Manager 

reporting back to the Mayor and the Executive Lead for Children’s on a quarterly 

basis and present updated reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Board on 

performance both operational and financial. 

 

g) the repayment of reserves as set out within the report. 

 

h) the strict performance management mechanism for the changes as set out in this 

report. 

 

i) the new Head of Safeguarding Children is a joint appointment with Health and 

Torbay Council. This post will be funded from within existing resources but will link 

together the two key providers of safeguarding services and extend the scope to 

shape new alternative options for children in the statutory system in the future. 

 

j) The principle of the implementation of Family Functional Therapy (FFT) using a 

special purpose vehicle (SPV) and the associated setup costs of approximately 

£200k funded from corporate reserves. See appendix 4 (to follow) 

 

2.2 The final budget for 2015/16 for Children’s Services will be agreed in February 2015 

and will, in part, be influenced by the short term delivery of the cost reduction plan. 

  

 

 

Page 95



Reason for Decision 

  

2.3 Children’s have had significant budget pressures for a number of years and this 

financial strategy has been proposed to address these issues ensuring the best use of 

resources is achieved and that children are adequately safeguarded. 

 

2.4 The delivery of the service within its approved budget is essential for the council’s 

medium term financial strategy. 

 

 

 

Paul Looby 

Executive Head Finance and Chief Finance Officer 

  

Page 96



Supporting Information 

3. Position 

 

Summary Budget and Spend for the previous 4 years 

 

3.1 The table below lays out the budget for Safeguarding and Wellbeing over the last 4 

years. 

 

Table 4 

 2010/11 2011/12* 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

forecast 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Net Budget   9.9 11.4 13.3 18.8 20.6 

Spend 10.9 15.8 16.6 23.4 26.6 

Net Growth in 

S&W 

  0.8   0.3   1.4   1.7   2.5 

 

Overspend 1.0 4.4 3.3 4.6 6.0 

*net budget changed to reflect funding changes and reorganisation of services 

 

3.2 In overall terms the Safeguarding and Wellbeing Service has received Member 

approved growth of approx £6.7m over the last 5 years plus other one off funding 

totalling £3m which was also approved by Members. Although more financial 

resources have been applied to the service over this period to mitigate the increasing 

expenditure this has not kept pace with the increasing number of children being 

placed in care for long periods and the corresponding cost.   

 

3.3  Since 2010/11 the number of children with at least one care placement has increased 

steadily from 243 children to 393 children.  At the end of 2013/14 the number of 

children in care stood at 314. 

 

3.4 Over the last 4 years, expenditure on placements for LAC has increased by £8.4m 

(average 43% p.a). Safeguarding and Wellbeing has accounted for almost all of the 

budget pressure in these years starting from £1m in 2010/11 increasing to £5.6m in 

2013/14. 

 

3.5 The main contributor to increasing spend is the length of stay in a placement which is 

measured in bed weeks; which counts the total number of weeks that any child is in a 

placement.  The table below shows that the number of bed weeks in an independent 

sector foster care and residential placement has steadily increased whereas the 

number of bed weeks for Torbay’s in-house foster carers has decreased over the 

same period. This has led to significant cost pressure due to the premium of placing 

children in the independent sector as opposed to in-house fostering. 

 

 

 

Page 97



 

 

  Table 5 

Placement Type Number of 

Bed Weeks 

Number of 

Bed Weeks 

Number of 

Bed Weeks 

Number of 

Bed Weeks 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 

In-house fostering 6,396 6,442 6,096 5,818 

Independent Sector 

Fostering 

2,860 2,748 4,226 4,840 

Residential 

Placements 

349 791 1,204 1,694 

 

PROPOSED COST REDUCTIONS 

 

1. Looked After Children (LAC) Target 

 

3.6 As stated in paragraph 1.7 above; Torbay’s LAC per 10,000 child population was 121 

in 2012/13. This is significantly higher than our statistical neighbours and the latest 

figures show this number has increased to 134 in 2013/14. A key requirement to the 

delivery of the cost reductions to support the 5 year plan is the setting of challenging 

but realistic targets for the number of looked after children. It is proposed that a LAC 

target of 72 per 10,000 child population is set for 2018/19 as this is the average for 

similar seaside towns. Translated in to the number of LAC the target is 180. The work 

packages described below are key to this target being achieved. See Appendix 1 

 

3.7 Converting this into actual LAC numbers is dynamic as it will change to reflect the 

average LAC per 10,000 over the lifetime of this plan.  The current target for LAC over 

the next 5 years is shown below:- 

 

    Table 6 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.8 It is estimated that the reduction of LAC over the next 5 years will remove £7.1m of 

expenditure from the system which is essential if the cost reduction strategy is to be 

successful: this is profiled in the table below and in Appendix 2:- 

 

Year 5 year 

Plan 

Number of 

LAC at 

end of 

year 

LAC rate 

/10,000 

2012/13  305 121 

2013/14  314 134 

2014/15 Year 1 305 122 

2015/16 Year 2 274 109 

2016/17 Year 3 242 97 

2017/18 Year 4 211 84 

2018/19 Year 5 180 72 

Page 98



 

  Table 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work Packages to Support Cost Reduction Plan 

 

2. Fostering campaign 

 

3.9 Since October 2013, a campaign to recruit more foster carers was launched together 

with the introduction of a new flat fee for in-house foster carers. The fee is set at £400 

per child and is part professional fee and part resources for the child. This has been a 

successful campaign with the number of foster carers standing at 96 as at July 2014 

providing 189 beds. As a result the number of in-house placements has increased 

from 116 in October 2013 to 125 at the end of June 2014 

 

3.10  The new flat fee and the more professional image of a foster carer has already 

resulted in a number of former independent sector foster carers transferring to in-

house. The reductions in spend is in the region of £0.6m for 2014/15 on a budget for 

all fostering placements of £5.4m. However, this does still leave a forecast overspend 

of £1.8m by March 2015. Therefore it is important that the momentum of this 

campaign is maintained 

 

3 Migration from Residential and ISP Fostering Placements to In-house  

3.11 This work package as proposed by Social Finance puts in place a strategy which 

migrates expensive residential placements to less expensive ISP fostering placements 

or to more cost effective in-house fostering carers.  Not only will this reduce costs 

placing children with in-house foster carers but will provide significantly better 

outcomes for children in care. 

 

3.12 The LAC placement mix is one of the main reasons for the increased in spend over 

the last 4 years.  The table below profiles how this strategy will change the percentage 

of placement weeks over the next 5 years:- 

 

 

 

Year Total LAC 

placement 

Cost 

Reduction in 

spend compared 

to 2013/14 

Forecast 

Under/Overspend 

p.a 

2013/14 £12.4m   

2014/15 £10.9m £1.1m £1.4m 

2015/16 £9.4m £1.6m £2.3m 

2016/17 £8.0m £3.0m £1.1m 

2017/18 £6.6m £4.3m £0.2m 

underspend 

2018/19 £5.4m £7.1m £3.2m 

underspend 

Page 99



 

Table 8 

Placement 

Type 

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 

 % % % % % % % % % 

In-house 

fostering 

51 40 36 36 40 43 47 51 55 

ISP 

fostering 

19 24 27 20 18 16 14 12 10 

Residential 8 10 11 17 15 14 13 11 10 

Other 22 26 26 27 27 27 26 26 25 

 

3.13 The reduction in the number of bed weeks spent in an independent sector placement 

will be achieved by a combination of the weekly demand and care management 

meetings which are chaired by the Director of Children’s Services who also authorises 

placement requests. These panels have been operational since June 2014. The 

Scheme of Delegation has also been revised, setting out how all placements are 

authorised to support this new process. 

 

4 Therapeutic Intervention – Keeping Foster and Kinship Carers Supported 

(KEEP) 

 

3.14  This proposal is still in its infancy but it is built upon evidence that has shown that it is 

effective in working with children already in care. The specific therapy is called KEEP 

and whose target population is those children in care who are displaying aggressive 

and non complaint behaviours 

 

3.15  For KEEP therapy to be implemented there would need to a staffing requirement of  

3.5 fte social workers plus 2 fte therapists and a 0.5 fte child psychiatrist.  This would 

be an invest to save initiative costing approximately £220,000 per annum. 

 

5 Development of in-house Parent and Child Assessment Placements 

 

3.16 Torbay had 22 parent and child placements in 2013/14. Of these, 11 (55%) were in an 

independent sector placement at a cost of £12,000 for a 12 weeks assessment and 10 

(45%) were placed in a residential setting at a cost of £20,000 for a 12 week 

assessment. Together the total cost was £0.8m in 2013/14. 

 

3.17 The migration of 11 independent foster care placements to an in house placement 

could reduce spend by a net £74,000 per year after the employment of a social worker 

and a community care worker at the Assessment and Resource Centre in Brixham 

(ARC). 

 

3.18 The reduction in spend could be increased if parent and child assessments currently 

in residential settings are also brought in-house. These typically cost £20,000 for a 12 

week assessment. 

Page 100



 

 

6 Adoption campaign 

 

3.19 On average, children in Torbay are adopted 5 years after entering care. However, in 

the last 18 months Torbay’s adoption service has doubled the number of children 

adopted and has moved up the national league tables as a result. In 2012/13, 10 

children were adopted and in 2013/14 25 were adopted. 

 

3.20 The proposal is that 25 adoptions are made each year. This will result in savings on 

placement costs of a net £1.2m over the remaining care journey assuming that these 

children are in care for 1.3 years as opposed to 5 years 

 

7. Family Functional Therapy (FFT) 

 

3.21 This is a service that can sit alongside existing early intervention services such as the 

integrated family support service (IFSS) which tackles immediate crises with a 

solution-based response but may not tackle the underlying issues. FFT would enable 

families to reframe their issues and change their behaviour to prevent crises arising in 

the future. FFT could be used to target children on the edge of care, LAC with a plan 

to return home, children at risk of offending and children with mental health problems. 

Preventing entry to care and enabling LAC to return home would represent significant 

savings in the region of £500,000 in avoided placement costs 

 

3.22 The proposal is for this therapy to be delivered via a Social Impact Bond special 

purpose vehicle which would require access to £200,000 of investment to set up the 

arrangement. Appendix 4 (to follow) to this report gives more detail on the proposal. 

 

The Cultural Change in Children’s Services 

 

3.23 The Director of Children’s Services has advised that the cultural change required in 
Children's Services – Safeguarding and Wellbeing to successfully implement this 
strategy is being embedded through a series of team meetings and focussed work 
groups. The individual team meetings provide an honest appraisal of the current 
financial situation, comparators with other Local Authorities and targets for the future. 
The focus being on the critical balance between cost and outcomes and the benefits 
to both from a different approach. In addition to this a set of focussed work groups are 
working on the current management of our existing care population (care 
management ) and the reduction of future demand (demand management) within the 
statutory sector. These two groups will closely scrutinise and monitor performance and 
be supplemented with implementation groups for each of the projects outlined in the 
report. 

 
3.24 Through this approach a large number of staff within Children's Services will not only 

be involved in reshaping social work practice but they will begin to own it, and it is only 
through this that the Director of Children’s Services believes the service can ensure 
sustainability. The long term sustainability of the new model is also dependent on the 
continuing development of partnership approaches with key agencies within Torbay. 
Central to this will be a new shared post between Torbay South Devon Health Care 

Page 101



Trust and the Local Authority at a senior strategic level for safeguarding children. This 
post will be funded from within existing resources but will link together the two key 
providers of safeguarding services and extend the scope to shape new alternative 
options for children in the statutory system in the future. 

  

Cost Reduction Strategy and Impact upon Reserves 

 

3.25 The work packages described above will remove over £1m of costs in 2014/15 and a 

further £600,000 in 2015/16. This is detailed in Appendix 3. 

 

3.26 Members will have received the quarter 1 budget monitoring report. This identified a 

forecast budget pressure of £1.4m in 2014/15. To ensure the council declares a 

balanced budget at year end, where possible this projected position will be managed 

within the overall Council budget with all services identifying savings.  

 

3.27 Part of the 5 year cost reduction plan is a recognition that the new work packages will 

require time to deliver savings and as such there is still a need to fund £2.3m of spend 

in 2015/16  and £1.1m in 2016/17 (see attached graph).  This will be funded from 

earmarked reserves. This is in addition to the £1.5m of resources allocated from the 

PFI Sinking Reserve to fund Social Finance and associated invest to schemes and 

one off support for any pressures that emerge during 2014/15.  Therefore Children’s 

Services are forecast to receive £4.9m of resources from reserves. However this could 

increase if the current year projection cannot be managed. 

 

3.28 Assuming the operational delivery of this plan is achieved by the Director of Children’s 

Services real cost reductions will start to be delivered in 2017/18 of £0.2m and £3.2m 

in 2018/19.  These cost reductions will be used to “pay back” the earmarked reserves.  

Members are asked to approve this approach and strategy and monitor the delivery of 

the operational changes.  The delivery of these financial projections will be monitored 

on a quarterly basis and the Director of Children’s Services will report to the Overview 

and Scrutiny each quarter on performance. In approving this strategy Members are 

accepting the risks of non delivery of the plan i.e. if the earmarked reserves cannot be 

replenished there will need to cost reductions to all other services.  In addition 

Children’s Services will have to budget to repay the PFI Sinking Fund approximately 

£200,000 per annum from 2018/19.    

 

3.29 Officers are currently in the process of undertaking the annual review of reserves and 

a report will be presented to Members as part of the 2015/16 budget.  In addition to 

the existing use of the PFI Sinking Reserve, the report will set out the reserves that 

will be earmarked to fund the forecast expenditure  in 2015/16 and 2016/17 and the 

risks and impact of Children’s Services not delivering the required forecast cost 

reductions.  

 

3.30 Due to the existing pressures within Children’s Services it is recommended that the 

£2m social care base budget contingency is allocated to the Safeguarding and 

Wellbeing base budget in the current and future years. 

 

Page 102



3.31 Members will be fully aware of the financial challenges faced by Torbay due to the 

continuing austerity measures and the coalition government’s public sector deficit 

reduction plans.  Whilst the coalition government has made no announcements as to 

local government grant allocation after 2015/16 and is unlikely to do so before the 

General Election in May 2015, further cuts to local government are expected and it is 

unlikely that there will be any real terms growth in funding until the end of this decade. 

This has been substantiated by the Institute of Fiscal Studies who have said by the 

end of the current parliamentary term the coalition government would have achieved 

only 50% of its deficit reduction plans 

 

3.32  The delivery of the forecast cost reductions within this plan by Safeguarding and 

Wellbeing are essential. If they not delivered it will have a major impact upon the 

financial resource base for the council and its Medium Term Resource Plan and will 

affect the resources available to deliver all other priority services.  Torbay is expecting 

further reductions to its grant income which will also have to be managed over the 

short to medium term. 

  

Performance Management 

 

3.33 The Director of Children’s Services has commissioned Social Finance to develop a 

performance management tool to ensure that progress towards the strategic goals are 

tracked and delivered. Details of this tool will be reported to the Children’s Services 

Project Board (chaired by the Executive Lead for Children’s Services) in September 

2014 and shared with all Members.  It is envisaged that this will take the form of a 

“dashboard” of key indicators and real time progress of their achievement.  

 

4. Possibilities and Options 

 

4.1 The alternative to using reserves is to make budget reductions to other council 

services to fund work packages and existing budget pressures. 

 

5. Risks 

 

5.1 Safeguarding and Wellbeing are forecast to overspend by £1.4m in the current 

financial year.  However existing commitments indicate there are budget pressures 

amounting to £3.2m.  Cost reductions of at least £1.8m must be achieved of over the 

next 6 months and there is a risk this may not be achieved. 

 

5.2 The existing forecast overspend is to be managed by identifying in year savings as set 

out in the quarter one budget monitoring report. There is a risk that these savings will 

not be delivered. 

 

5.3 If either of the outcomes in paragraph 5.1 or 5.2 materialise these budget pressures 

will have to be funded from reserves which will place further strain on the council’s 

overall financial resources. 

  

Page 103



5.4 The key risk with respect to the 5 year cost reduction plan is the delivery and timing of 

the work packages and the profile of the cost reductions.  Any delay in their 

implementation will have a detrimental impact upon the level of earmarked reserves 

and the timing for replenishing those reserves. This will have a significant impact upon 

the council’s Medium Term Resources Plan and will mean there will have to be 

service reductions to all other Business Units.  

 

5.5 The Director of Children’s Services must continue to maintain robust financial control 

across all other budgets within Children’s Services to ensure spend is maintained 

within the approved budget. 

 

5.6 Any Increase numbers of looked after children over the period of the plan may offset 

the impact of the cost reduction measures. 

    

 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 – Spend estimates based upon lower LAC rates and the shift in placements to in-

house fostering 

 

Appendix 2 – LAC target – to estimate future spend 

 

Appendix 3 – Aim to Achieve - £1.1 m savings from 8 initiatives 

 

Appendix 4 (to follow) – Family Functional Therapy Special Purpose Vehicle Proposal 

 

Additional Information 

 NONE 

 

 

 

Page 104



 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 8

Page 105



 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 9

Page 106



 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 10

Page 107



 

 

Adult Social Care     Director:  Caroline Taylor 

       Executive Lead: Cllr Christine Scouler 

 

Current and Proposed Budget and Staffing 

 

 2014/2015 2015/2016 
Gross 

Expenditure 

Gross 

Income 

Use of 

Reserves 

Net 

Budget 

FTE Proposed 

Budget 

Adult Social Care 

 

41,240,000 (5,000)  41,235,000 0 35,774,000 

Partnership 

commissioned  

Services * 

3,154,000 (1,275,000) 0 1,879,000 9 1,199,300 

Community Equipment 

Service 

996,000 (498,000) 0 498,000 0 498,000 

Totals 

 

45,390,000 (1,778,000) 0 43,612,000  37,471,300 

 
* This is the former Supporting People service 

 

Draft Proposals 
 

  Proposed 

Budget Change 

2015/2016 

1. Renegotiation of contracts (170,000) 

2. Review of all existing community care support plans (498,000) 

3. Care home placement numbers and rates (360,000) 

4. Equitable application of non-residential charging policy (100,000) 

5. Community Alarms (48,000) 

6. Learning Disability Development Fund (17,000) 

7. Voluntary Sector Block Contracts (38,000) 

8. Service Redesign – Learning Disability (525,000) 

9. Service Redesign – Respite Care (250,000) 

10. Service Redesign – St Kilda’s (320,000) 

11. Delivery Model – Assessment Process (668,000) 

12. Delivery Model – Emergency Duty Team (274,000) 

13. Delivery Model – Quality Assurance (127,000) 

14. Movement of clients from residential homes to Extra Care Housing (500,000) 

15. Further joint working, shared commissioning, new income and efficiencies  (1,566,000) 

16. Integrated Families Service (43,700) 

Agenda Item 5a

Page 108



 

17. Reaching Out South West (450,000) 

18. Review of staffing arrangements to match service demand (186,000) 

 

Page 109



 

Adults and Older People – Residential and Nursing Home Provision 

 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

Provides accommodation, care and support to 

clients unable to live at home.  They may also 

have chronic/complex needs which prevent 

them from being cared for safely at home or 

within another setting. 

 

To proactively support the individual in 

maintaining and/or developing their activities 

of daily living skills. 

To ensure the client, working closely with 

carers and the zone team maintains links with 

family and community.  

To promote the health and welfare of the 

individual resident receiving the service. 

 

 

The service is provided to people who can no longer be supported to live at 

home and/or have chronic and complex needs which prevent them from being 

care for safely at home or in another setting (858 in total – includes full cost 

clients and short stay placements).   

Placement 

Numbers 

Older 

People 

Mental 

Health    

(under 65) 

Learning 

Disability 
TOTAL 

Residential 

Care 
591 60 114 765 

Nursing 

Care 
91 2 0 93 

Total 682 62 114 858 
 

 

Adults and Older People – Domiciliary and Day Care Services 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

Domiciliary care provides tailored support within 

a client’s home to meet their individual needs. 

The person is visited at various times of the day 

or, in some cases, care is provided over a full 24-

hour period. Day care provides a range of 

meaningful social activities aimed at sustaining a 

person’s capacity to live independently. 

 

The reasons for the service are reflected in 

the expected outcomes, including:  

• Extended Client choice in the way their 

care needs are met  

• Clients live more independent and 

healthy lives  

• A wide range of responsive and accessible 

personal and non-personal care services 

are provided, with an emphasis on 

prevention and enabling independence  

• High quality support for people with long-

term needs is provided  
 

 TOTAL 
Older 

People 

Mental 

Health 

(under 65) 

LD Total 

Domiciliary 

Care 
824 689 40 95 824 

Day Care 231 122 2 107 231 

Direct 

Payment 
380 241 16 123 380 

Total 1,435 1,052 58 325 1,435 

P
age 110



 

Learning Disabilities 

 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

Organisations within Torbay will work together 

to ensure that people with a learning disability 

will be able to enjoy the same basic rights as 

anyone else. People will be housed and 

supported to find work that is suited to them. 

They will also be able to enjoy time with friends 

and family and take part in the culture and 

community of Torbay. 

 

To support clients to live in their own homes 

rather than living in residential care.  

To support clients into employment. 

To support clients with learning disabilities to 

play an active role within the community. 

 

 
 

Demand TOTAL  

Domiciliary & Day Care & Direct Payments 325 

Care Homes   114 

In-House services  90 

Total  529 

Ordinary Residence 2012/13 2013/14 

People moving into Torbay  28 6 

Pending n/a 4 

Projected to year end n/a 2 

People moving out to other 

areas   
-2 -5 

Balance +26 +7 

 

  

P
age 111



 

Mental Health Services 

 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

To support people during acute/severe and 

enduring mental health problems using 

appropriate residential, nursing, domiciliary 

and day care services as well as provide 

specialist advice to other frontline teams. 

 

Mental health services for people under the 

age of 65 are co-ordinated by Devon 

Partnership Trust; services for people aged 

over 65, and suffering with dementia, are 

co-ordinated by the Trust. 

 

 

Dementia is one of the biggest challenges facing 

health and social care at present and has been 

highlighted as one of the most important areas for 

focus.  In Torbay our age profile means that this is 

even more an issue than most areas.  

 

 

 No. Care Home 

Clients  

Community Mental Health Team – under 65  62 

Older People Mential Health Team 214 

Total 276 

 

Support to carers 

 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

Information, advice and emotional support to carers 

which also prevents the breakdown of their physical or 

mental health.  Flexible breaks and other support is 

available which is not dependent on accessing statutory 

services.  The service enables an appropriate response to 

most needs and an effective referral mechanism for more 

complex cases. 

 

The Torbay model of carers support combines low cost, 

direct access for carers to information, advice and 

support; encouragement of self care/self assessment; 

improvement in self help networks in the community, 

together with targeted support. This universal offer 

enables an appropriate response to most needs and 

effective referral for the more complex cases.  Early 

identification and targeting ‘hidden carers’ reduces crisis 

responses and supports a shared and integrated approach 

across the health and social care system 

• Torbay Carers Register supported 3570 carers in 

2013-14 (524 new carers joined the Register)  

• 4466 carers were supported through their GP surgery 

in year to 01/04/14 (up from 4303 at 01/04/13) 

• Average of 240 new enquiries per month were made 

to Signposts Information Service 

• At 01/04/14 182 Young Adult Carers had received 

support from the service and 293 carers under 25 

were known to adult teams 

• 2013-14 target for carers assessments exceeded – 

target 31%, achieved 35.3% 

 

 

  

P
age 112



 

Adult Social Care (via Partnership Agreement with Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust) 

Adult social care provides a range of statutory services to improve the outcomes of vulnerable people.  All of  the draft saving proposals are transformations of existing services and 

will be aligned and compliant with the Care Act 2014 which as a new piece of  legislation needs to be implemented in 2015/16 and 2017/18. Therefore savings may in the final 

instance vary from the proposals as set out once proposals are consulted on with service users and delivered.  

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implement-

ation Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

 41,235,000   35,774,000    

1. Renegotiation of Contracts:  

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  220,000 

 

 

    

2. Review of all existing community 

care support plans 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  498,000   

 

  

3. Care Home Placement Numbers & 

Rates 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  360,000     

4. Equitable Application of Non-

residential Charging policy 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  50,000 

 

 

    

P
age 113



 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implement-

ation Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

5. Community Alarms 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  48,000     

6. Learning Disability Development 

Fund 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  17,000   

 

 

7. Voluntary Sector Block Contracts 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  38,000 

 

 

 

  

 

8. Service Redesign - Learning Disability 

Review of remaining day care and 

respite service including transport 

arrangements. 

  525,000  

  

The peninsular Learning Disability Commissioning 

Strategy and then the Operational Commissioning 

Strategy for Learning Disability Services were 

endorsed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in 

April 2014. Consultation and engagement on 

content of the Operation Learning Disability 

Commissioning Strategy took place in Autumn 

2013.  It was explicit that this would include 

transport and discussions / consultation took 

place with individual service users and providers 

and SPOT were fully engaged. 
An EIA was completed at that time, however the 

Strategy, and therefore the EIA, are high level 

proposals.  The detail is being worked up through 

engagement processes which include people with 

learning disabilities and representative groups.  

P
age 114



 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implement-

ation Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

9. Service Redesign - Respite Care  

Review existing arrangements for 

respite care and introduce a single 

policy to ensure equitable availability 

of respite care services according to 

need.  

 

 

 

250,000    This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which there can be detailed 

consultation with service users and their families 

this will be completed.  The results of the 

consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 

Assessment, will then be considered in reaching 

decisions about the future of these services  

10. Service Redesign - St Kilda’s 

To review the proposals for the St 

Kilda’s site to ensure the 

recommended service solutions 

represents value for money. 

 

 

 

 

320,000    Discussions underway with key stakeholders. Final 

proposals will be brought forward for decision, 

initially at the Trust Board in July.  

 

There will no impact for the remaining long stay 

residents at St Kilda’s.  Some other services may 

be provided in other ways in the future. 

 

11. Delivery Model 1 - Assessment 

Process 

This will involve changing the way 

that care needs are assessed and 

services are co-ordinated, including: 

� Moving to telephone and on-line 

assessments rather than face to 

face contacts. 

� Promoting the self-directed care 

and personal budgets to enable 

people to take control of their 

own circumstances and needs  

 

 

 

 

668,000    This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which there can be detailed 

consultation with service users and their families 

this will be completed.  The results of the 

consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 

Assessment, will then be considered in reaching 

decisions about the future of these services  

P
age 115



 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implement-

ation Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

12. Delivery Model 2 - Emergency Duty 

Team 

� Review of the way Out of Hours & 

Emergency Duty services are 

provided. 

 

 

 

274,000    This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which consultation can take 

place this will be completed if necessary.  

However, it is not expected that there will be any 

impact for service . 

13. Delivery Model - Quality Assurance  

� To review the way the Trust 

works with providers of nursing, 

residential and domiciliary care 

services to promote and ensure 

the quality of services.  

 

 

 

127,000    This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which consultation can take 

place this will be completed.  There is a risk that 

the level of scrutiny and support which providers 

receive to promote and ensure service quality will 

be reduced.  However the impact cannot be 

assessed until detailed proposals, or options, are 

available.  

  

14. Movement of clients from residential 

homes to Extra Care Housing 

 

The objective will be to support 

people to remain, or return to, living 

independently in their own 

accommodation. 

 

 

500,000    This is a high level proposal and once there is a 

level of detail upon which there can be detailed 

consultation with service users and their families 

this will be completed.  The results of the 

consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 

Assessment, will then be considered in reaching 

decisions about the future of these services  

15. Further Joint working, shared 

commissioning, new income and 

efficiencies to be explored with the 

NHS and others. 

 

 

 

1,566,000    Further Joint working, shared commissioning, new 

income and efficiencies to be explored with the 

NHS and others. 

 

  

P
age 116



 

Partnership Commissioned Services 

 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

A range of community  services are commissioned 

particularly  for  housing related support for Torbay’s 

vulnerable people with a local connection, who need 

support to remain living independently. Services intervene 

early to prevent the greater financial and social cost of 

acute responses to incidents such as, threatened 

homelessness, poor mental health and domestic abuse.  

 

There is no statutory requirement these servies but the 

programme plays a key role in delivering the Council’s 

statutory duties in relation to homelessness and children, 

families and young people, crime and disorder and public 

health. 

 

Client groups include older people, homeless families, 

people with learning disability and physical/sensory 

disability, young people and ex-offenders.  

 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implement-

ation Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

 1,879,000   1,199,300    

16. Integrated families service 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  43,700     

17. Reaching Out South West 

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  450,000     

18. Review of staffing arrangements to 

match service demand  

 

(Proposal agreed by Council in Feb 2014) 

 

  186,000     

 

  

P
age 117



 

Community Equipment Service 

 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? 

The Community Equipment Service is jointly 

commissioned by Torbay Council and Southern Devon 

CCG. The service provides complex aids for daily living 

(including, specialist beds, mattresses, hoists and syringe 

pumps) and minor adaptations (such as grab rails and 

ramps). It also provides the administration for the Simple 

Aids for Daily Living (including, walking frames, shower 

stools and bath boards) aids service which is provided by a 

range of local retailers.  

 

The equipment and adaptations provided enable children 

and adults to remain independent avoiding delayed 

hospital discharge, admission into residential and nursing 

care and support end of life care at home. 

 

Demand is driven by the need to safely discharge people 

from hospital and intermediate care with the equipment 

adaptations they will need to remain independent as well 

as ensuring people can remain independent at homer 

following illness or disability. This is new service so there is 

no historical data available. 

 

In April there were 297 clients who received community 

equipment. In May this increased to 611 clients 

 

 

Draft Proposals – Outline details Actual 

Budget 

2014/2015 

Savings for 2015/16 Proposed 

Budget 

2015/2016 

Implement-

ation Cost 

Delivery 

Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 

 

 Income 

£ 

Budget 

reduction 

£ 

    

 498,000   498,000    

No proposals for budget savings        

 

P
age 118



          

Title: Update on services receiving transitional funding 

Report to:  Scrutiny  Prepared by:  Debbie Freeman and 
Shirley Beauchamp – 
Commissioning 
Officers 

 

1. Purpose of Report  

The purpose of the report is to provide Members with an update on the services that 
are receiving transitional funding from the Council to allow them to source 
alternative funding. These services are: 

 

• The Jatis Project – 25 beds of supported accommodation for people recovering 
from substance misuse issues. Transitional funding is in place until March 31st 
2015. 

• Leonard Stocks Centre – 24 bed hostel providing supported accommodation for the 
most vulnerable, and housing single people to whom the Council has a duty to 
under Housing Law. Transitional funding is in place until March 31st 2015. 

• Supported Employment Service (provided by Pluss) – currently supporting 24 
people with Learning Disabilities and Autistic Spectrum Conditions, who are working 
and need support to maintain the work they have. Transitional funding is in place 
until 31st December 2014. 

• Young Persons Support and Accommodation Service (provided by Independent 
Futures, part of Devon and Cornwall Housing) - 45 units of accommodation based 
support, plus approximately 30 hours per week outreach support. The 
accommodation is based at: 

Torbay Foyer, Teignmouth Road, Torquay 20 units 

Fraser Court, Waterleat Road, Paignton  11 units 

Galway Court, Bath Lane, Torquay 7 units 

Parkview, Garfield Road, Paignton 7 units 

 

The service is provided for homeless 16 &17 year olds, 16 &17 year olds leaving 
care and young people aged 16-24 requiring supported accommodation. 
Transitional funding is in place until 31st March 2015, to facilitate a reduction in 
capacity to 20 units of accommodation based support at Torbay Foyer and 15 hours 
per week outreach support. 

• Integrated Families Service also known as Stone Court (provided by Independent 
Futures, part of Devon and Cornwall Housing) - 15 units of accommodation based 
support at Newton Road Torquay.  (These units sit alongside 6 units of emergency 
temporary accommodation used by Housing Options, which are due to be 
decommissioned by 31st March 2015 following the procurement of new emergency 
temporary accommodation by Housing Options.  DCH did not bid for the new 
contract). The service also delivers 14 hours a week in outreach support. 
Transitional funding is in place until 31st March 2015. 

Agenda Item 5a
Appendix 1

Page 119



          

2. Background 

 

Following the budget consultation in 2013/14, Members granted transitional funding to a 
number of services to allow them time to source alternative funding to enable the services 
to continue.  

Members requested that they be kept updated on the progress that the organisations had 
made towards sourcing alternative funding, and also arrangements for service end if 
alternative funding is not secured. 

Officers have met regularly with the providers of the services receiving transitional funding. 
Councillor Excell has attended some of these meetings. Transition plans are also in place 
for all services. Officers are working with providers to support them to access alternative 
funding, but also putting in place plans to decommission services if funding is not secured. 

 

3. Key Points 

 

The update on the services receiving transitional funding is as follows: 

 

The Jatis Project  

There are ongoing negotiations between Jatis, Public Health and Commissioning Officers 
to try to design a community rehabilitation model within budget. This ten bed community 
rehabilitation service would replace the current model which spot purchases drug and 
alcohol rehabilitation beds out of area, as there is currently no suitable provision in Torbay. 
A final decision about the viability of this project will need to be taken by the end of 
October. 

Alongside this, Jatis are planning to have 3 shared houses to provide move on 
accommodation from the community rehab. The people in the 3 houses will be supported 
by one support worker, who will be funded by Jatis. 

Alongside these negotiations, a decommissioning plan is in place to ensure smooth 
closure or reduction of the Council funded service if the Public Health project is found not 
to be viable. 

 

Leonard Stocks Centre 

Chapter One, Shekinah and Jatis have been having regular meetings (‘Plan B’ meetings) 
to look at developing a model for provision for the most vulnerable people in Torbay, and 
accessing funding for this provision.  They have now been joined by Langley House Trust 
(the owners of the Leonard Stocks building) and Torbay Churches.   

 

The group are working on putting in a Big Lottery bid for some funding to maintain a 
‘hostel’ provision. There is also a possibility of charitable funding from within the group. 

 

A decommissioning plan is in place for the service detailing actions that will need to take 
place if alternative funding is not found. Transition/decommissioning meetings are being 
organised to take place on a monthly basis between Chapter One and the responsible 

Page 120



          

Commissioning Officer for the Council to plan for closure of Leonard Stocks if alternative 
funding cannot be accessed. 

 

Supported Employment Service (provided by Pluss) 

Pluss are making applications for alternative funding to maintain the service. They are 
preparing a Big Lottery bid, and also making an application for some short term funding 
from the Department of Health’s Autism Innovation fund (closing date for Autism 
Innovation Fund is 28th August 2014) 

Regular meetings are taking place with Pluss, and a transition plan is in place for the 
service if alternative funding cannot be found. 

 

Young Persons Support and Accommodation Service 

There are no confirmed plans to source alternative funding for the units being 
decommissioned as part of the reduction in capacity. 

Seven units at Parkview have been decommissioned as of 4/8/14.  Of the seven clients (all 
female), one returned to live with family, the others have remained in the accommodation 
which has been taken over by Young Devon as host landlords for their supported lodgings 
provision. (This had no impact on the Young Devon contract value). 

Fraser Court is owned by Spectrum Housing Group and managed by Westward Housing.  
DCH provide the support to the clients this block, who are on six month assured shorthold 
tenancies.  The properties will return to Spectrum Housing on 1st April 2015.  No referrals 
will be taken for this accommodation after 30th September. 

It is understood that Spectrum would aim to continue to use Fraser Court as supported 
housing in the first instance; subject to Housing Benefit agreeing to pay additional HB to 
cover costs for additional (intensive) housing management costs which would be incurred 
as a result of the units remaining supported. They are currently exploring this model with 
another Local Authority, so there is no timescale as yet on whether this is a viable option in 
Torbay.  If this is viable they would approach the current housing management provider 
(Westward) to provide the intensive housing management on Spectrum’s behalf. 

 If this option is not viable Spectrum will want to convert the tenancies to general needs 
accommodation so that the occupants do not need to find alternative accommodation.  
This will need to be agreed by Torbay Council as an exception to the usual Devon Home 
Choice allocations policy. In the meantime move on plans are being developed with the 
clients to find alternative accommodation as a contingency.  

Galway Court is owned by DCH and they will retain the properties for their own use. They 
are also exploring intensive housing management options though Housing Benefit but 
there are not timescales for this as yet. No referrals will be taken for this accommodation 
after 30th September. Move on plans are being developed with the clients to find 
alternative accommodation via the private rented sector or social housing through Devon 
Home Choice. 

Stakeholders and clients affected are currently being formally notified of the plans. Regular 
meetings are taking place with the provider and will continue throughout the transition 
period.  

 

 

Page 121



          

Integrated Families Service (Stone Court) 

There are currently no bids for alternative funding to continue the service at Stone Court.  

The block is owned by DCH. No decisions have yet been made regarding the future of 
Stone Court however they are looking at options in discussion with Teignbridge District 
Council and our Housing Options Manager. No timescale has been given for the 
completion of these discussions.  

In the absence of any other sources of funding the 15 SP funded units and outreach 
support at Stone Court will be decommissioned as of 31 March 2015.  

The units comprise a mix of 13 x one and 2 x two bed flats occupied by families on six 
month assured shorthold tenancies.  The waiting list will close and no referrals will be 
taken from 30th September 2014.  Individual move on plans are being developed for all the 
affected clients to find alternative accommodation via the private rented sector or social 
housing through Devon Home Choice. Regular meetings are taking place with the provider 
and will continue throughout the transition period. 

Stakeholders and clients are currently being formally notified of the plans.  

4. Risks 

 

Jatis 

• The principal risks associated with Jatis are that it is not possible to agree a viable 
community rehabilitation model with the funding available from Public Health. This 
would lead to the closure of the Council funded service, and the need for all 25 
people to move from their current accommodation in Jatis, and would leave no 
supported accommodation in Torbay for people recovering from drug and alcohol 
use.  

Colleagues in Public Health and Commissioning are working hard with Jatis to try to 
agree a viable model for a community rehabilitation service in Torbay.  

Alongside this, a transition plan has been put in place to plan for the closure of the 
service and moving the 25 people out if agreement cannot be reached on the 
community rehab. 

 

Again, the decommissioning plan and regular transition meetings with Jatis should mitigate 
this risk as we are making detailed plans for service closure if this situation occurs.  

 

Leonard Stocks  

• The principal risk associated with Leonard Stocks is if alternative funding cannot be 
found and Leonard Stocks closes. The Council’s Housing Options service currently 
relies heavily on Leonard Stocks to house single people to whom the Council has a 
statutory duty under housing legislation. In addition, Leonard Stocks currently 
provides the statutory Severe Weather Watch service which provides a roof for the 
night for street homeless people in the case of severe weather. Provision of both of 
these statutory services would have a large impact on the Council’s Housing 
Options service. 

There would clearly be a huge impact on the street scene in Torbay if there was no 
hostel provision in Torbay as street homelessness would potentially increase, with 
the associated impact on community safety and tourism. 

Page 122



          

 

• If the Leonard Stocks Centre remains open and funded through alternative means, 
there is no guarantee that the provider would be willing to take referrals from the 
Council’s Housing Options team, or run the statutory Severe Weather Watch 
service. The current providers of Leonard Stocks have a very good working 
relationship with Housing Options, and Commissioning Officers are meeting 
regularly with the ‘Plan B’ group to try to ensure that any future service would work 
with the Council to help it fulfil its statutory duty. 

 

Supported Employment (provided by Pluss) 

• The major risk with this service is that alternative funding is not found, and the 
service closes. It is the opinion of the service manager that many of the 24 people 
who are currently supported in their paid work, will not be ready to continue with 
their jobs without any support, and many of them will lose their jobs and return to 
benefits. 

 

The Commissioning Officer is working with the service to look at any possible alternative 
options for supporting these people in their work. A decommissioning plan is in place to 
ensure the smooth closure of the service. 

 

Young Persons Support and Accommodation Service  

• The first major risk is that the service will be unable to move sufficient numbers of 
young people out of the decommissioned units in time.  Young people will need to 
obtain deposits and references to seek accommodation in the private rented sector; 
or obtain social rented accommodation via Devon Home Choice which currently has 
a backlog of high banded cases. Some of the young people may refuse to leave 
their accommodation which will mean that DCH will have to take court action to 
recover possession of the properties, and some clients may be eligible to apply as 
homeless to the Council’s Housing Options Services and be entitled to temporary 
accommodation as part of the Council’s statutory responsibilities under 
homelessness legislation.  

 

• The second major risk is the impact of the reduction in capacity on the pipeline of 
services for young people aged 16 to 17 leaving care and/or at risk of 
homelessness. The Council has a duty under The Children Act 1989, The Children 
(Leaving Care) Act 2000, and Leaving Care Guidance 2011 to accommodate 
eligible, and relevant care leavers; and discretionary authority to support 
accommodation needs of former relevant care leavers. There are also other case 
law judgements (like Southwark 2009) which have relevance for homeless 16 & 17 
year olds. The significant reduction in overall capacity for young people’s 
accommodation based support services may lead to more young people applying 
as homeless who may be entitled to temporary accommodation as part of the 
Council’s statutory responsibilities under homelessness legislation.  

 
 
To mitigate the risks outlined above the Commissioning Officer and Housing Options 
Manager are meeting with the provider every three weeks to review the transition plan and 
move on plans for the clients affected.  

Page 123



          

 
 
Integrated Families Service (Stone Court) 

• The major risk is that the service will be unable to move sufficient numbers of 
clients out of the building in time.  These families will need to obtain deposits and 
references to seek accommodation in the private rented sector; or obtain social 
rented accommodation via Devon Home Choice which currently has a backlog of 
high banded cases. Some may refuse to leave their accommodation which will 
mean that DCH will have to take court action to recover possession of the 
properties, and as these are families with children they will be eligible to apply as 
homeless to the Council’s Housing Options Services and be entitled to temporary 
accommodation as part of the Council’s statutory responsibilities under 
homelessness legislation.  

 
To mitigate the risk outlined above the Commissioning Officer and Housing Options 
Manager are meeting with the provider every three weeks to review the decommissioning 
plan and move on plans for each client.  
 

5. Conclusion 

 

Commissioning Officers are working in two ways with services that are receiving 
transitional funding: firstly to support them in their efforts to obtain alternative funding, and 
secondly to plan for closure of services if this does not happen. 

 

Whilst there will undoubtedly be an impact of the closure of these services if alternative 
funding is not found, Commissioning Officers are working with providers to try to minimise 
these risks if this should occur. 

Page 124


	Agenda
	2 (9.30) Revenue Budget 2014/2015 - Quarter 1
	Revenue Budget Monitoring Q1 - Appendix 1
	Revenue Budget Monitoring Q1 - Appendix 2

	3a (9.45) Introduction and Rationale
	Review of Connections - Draft EIA

	4a (11.30)  Introduction and Rationale
	School Transport SEN - Draft EIA
	Children's Centres - Update on Consultation
	Children's Centres - Draft EIA
	Review of Day and Domiciliary Care - Draft EIA
	Representation from Kool Club
	Representation from Citizens' Advice Bureau
	Children's 5 yr strategy
	Children's 5 yr Strategy - Appendix 1
	Children's 5 yr Strategy - Appendix 2
	Children's 5 yr Strategy - Appendix 3
	Children's 5 yr Strategy - Appendix 4

	5a (2.00)  Introduction and Rationale
	Transitional Funded Services Update


